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(1] Monday, 21st June, 1999
2 MR ROGER SOTHERTON
18] Crossexamined by MR HOBBS (Cont.)
#]  MRHOBBS: Mr Sotherton, please, ] would like you to take
15 file E1, if you would not mind. You might like to take
(61 this opportunity to clear your bench of the other
@ files. At file E1, would you turn to page 450/A, which
8] is a document we were looking at together on Friday.
B A: Yes.
g Q: All right, now, [ think we have agreed that the
[11] handwriting at the top of that page, at the top right,
[12] is your handwriting?
119 A: Yes.
1#3  Q: It says, "Relates to proposal presented to Paul King in
(15] November 1989",
el A: Yes,
(171 Q: This proposal, as 1 understand it, that you are
(18 referring to there is Concept 47
A: Yes.
2o Q: Do you have any recollection yourself of presenting that
1] proposal which we know as Concept 4 to Paul King in

) 19897
" R A: Not clearly, no.

N
“
J

R4  Q: Do you have any recollection?
®s]  A: Yes, that I presented it at some point, but I could not
Page 1

(11 Q: Who made the presentation to Paul King, do you know?

21 A: 1 certainly would have been involved,

B Q: Wasityou?

¥ A: 1 probably jointly with John Donovan, yes.

51  Q: Turn,if you would, please, to -

1 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Sotherton, 1 know this is difficult

{71 becausc you are having to turn your mind back in this

[ case 10 years, and I find it unhelpful when you say "1

151 probably did something, yes". What Mc Hobbs is asking

(1] you to de is to recall what happened. If you say "I

111 probably did something", it means that you cannot

I1g} remember but you think it is likely. If you say "yes",

[13] it means you did something. I want to know whether you

[14] can recall these events or whether you cannot recall

15) them. I want to know, if you cannot recall them,

{161 whether you are trying to do your best to work out what

[171 was likely to have happened. So for you to say

[13] "probably, yes", really does not do me any good.

(g1 A: I think the answer would be "probably”, then.

] MR HOBBS: Sowhenyouanswer "probably”, youareanswering
[e1] within that frame of reference which my Lord has just

[22} indicated?

12gp  A: Yes,

(24 Q: Would you turn to page 449, in the same bundle, please.

{25] This letter carrics the letter reference RGS/SDP/AB10Cb
Page 3

[1) be accurate about the date.
Bl  @: You sec, what intrigues me is that you are writing on
[ the top of this letter to Paul King in November 1989 in
4] circumstances where, as [ understand it from all other
[\ materials in the case, that the proposal was presented
8] on 23rd October 19897
m  A: No,the comment refers to a presentation to Paul King in
[ 1989,
#  Q: Truc.The date which you are writing is November 1989.
[18) You are as [ understand it —
11 A: No, sorry, I think the date that I am writing here is
1e 24.11.92.
13 Q: Which date are you referring to?
(4] A: Iam referring to the datc on which that note was
[5] written, on the top right-hand corner of page 450/A.

(el @ You are saying that you wrote the note at the front
1171 here?

(a1 A: Yes.

e Q: In 19927

Ro  A: I'would think so, yes.

1 Q: Right. Okay. Now, in fact, the date on the document

2 relating to Concept 4 and its presentation to Paul King
23] 'was on 23rd October 1989. Did you not know that in
[24) 1992, in November 19927
E5  A: Yes, probably.
‘ Page 2

(11 at the top. Do you sce that?
B A Yes.

@ Q: Youwere presentincourtwhen I'wasasking MrDonovan
¥ questions about that reference, were you not?
151 A: Yes.
|  Q: The RGS is you, is it not?
m  A: Correct,
B  Q: SDPis Sharon Peacock?
B  A: Correct.
{19  Q: And why is this numbered B, do you know?
t11 A AB100b would probably be the file reference or the
[12) computer reference.
1131 Q: And the significance of the jast letter "b" is what?
14 A: Iam not completely sure but it may be a sccond letter
[15} in a sequence or perhaps a redraft of a letter.
(6] Qi A redraft of a letter?
un  A: Yes,maybe.
1ar  Q: How might that occur?
(187 A: Only if it is — probably if it is retained on computcr.
1200 Q: You will have to explain because it is a little cryptic
[21] to me.
21 A: Ifaletter is drafted and is not printed or sent, and

[23) left on computer, it may be modified and then sent, but
{24] for the reference of - for the purpose of what did it

{es) say before, I think that we used to use a system like
Page 4
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1] that. That was something that was devised by Sharon
1 Peacock. I do not really know the complcte details. I
18] am drawing on my memory of what we used to do
¥ administratively.
B Q: Wouldthisbe designated AB100b becauseitisthe second
(6] draft of a letter, the first draft of which was AB10G?
7  A: Thatis a possibility.
B Q: Keep afinger in 449 and go to 422. Do you see the code
19 reference at the top of 4227
o]  A: Yes.
11 Q: Are you able to explain the relationship, if there is
112} one, between what is on 422 and what is on 4497

nal  A: Without reading the entire contents of the letter,
[14] probably that it is a follow on letter.
15t @: Right. Is it your recollection that Mr John Donovan had

[16) @ hand in the drafting of the letter which is at 4497

17} A: Yes, he most certainly would have done.

18| Q: Are you able to recollect to what extent he was involved
" [#9) |in the drafting and to what extent it is your wording?

25| A: No,Iam not. It is probably myself that generated it

21 passed it to John for approval. At that time we
- [27 Were very busy with a number of projects.

" 29)

{1] contents of this letter?

2 A: Ithink so. .

B Q: Is there anything - think about this carefully - is

) there anything in this letter which would have been

5] added at the time of writing of this that not been

(6 discussed previously with Horley?

M  A: Could you repeat that?

B Q: Isthere anything in the contents of this letter that
i91 has been added at the time of writing that had not

tig] previously been discussed with Horley?

i1 A: I should not think so, I wouldn’t think so.

12 Q: So your evidence to my Lord is that the totality of the
113 material there, if not exactly in those words, but the

[#4] totality of the material was discussed with Horley?

115)  A: Yes.

116  Q: Now,I need you, please, to give my Lord an account in
117 your own words of how this letter came 10 be written,
1#8] and I want to start your recollection in this way.

119] There came a time in July when a game proposal was put
[20] to Sainsbury, and that was the letter that 1 had open

[21] with you 2 moment or two ago, which I have just lost.

7 422

Q: Turn to page 4507 22 At page 422, which was the other lctter which
1247  A: Yes, 124 carried the reference AB100, there is a proposal being
25 Q: And you will scc just above "yours sincerely” thereisa - 5] put to Horley by John Donovan and it relates to games?
Page 5 Page 7
{1] statement: : 111 A: Yes.
= "I trust that the above account accurately 2 @: Do youneed to sce the letter at 422 to accept that from
{8 reflects the various matters disclosed and discussed”. {3 me?
¥} Do you see that? ¥l  A: I have that in front of me.

B A: Thisis 450B.
e Q: Itis 450 in the bundle. There is no B number on the -
1 page I have open.

") ®m A:Ihave 450A and B.

@  Q: Yes,if you could - I am not after the A and B letter,
[10] We have left that one. If you go to the page in front
{11] of 4504, it should be just 4507
[z A: I can see now.
3] Q: Thatis the second page of the two page letter, the
(4] first page is at 449, and [ am asking you about that
[15) statcment at the back end of 450. On 450 it says:
(18] ‘1 trust that the above account accurately
1171 reflects the various matters disclosed and discussed®,
ng] Do you see that?
e A: Yes.
2 Q: Is it your evidence to my Lord that the contents of this
[21] letter, that is referring to which precedes that
{27 stateroent, is a record which truly and accurately

B Q: Right There is nothing in that letter of 10th July
© 1990 relating to the multibrand loyalty card proposal,
[7 is there?
B A: Correct.
] Q: I needyou,please, to tell my Lord how between the 10th
(1q) July 1990 you reach a situation in which you come to
111] write the letter of 24th July 1990. What happens
[12] between the 10th and the 24th that results in the letter
113 of the 24th, pleasc?
4]  A: I followed up John’s initial contact with Mr Horley,
115] John being very busy on the Star Trek promotion, as I
136 recall, and it was then left for me, being based more so
17} at the office, to follow things through. I can't recall
[1g] exactly how many phone calls I had with Mr Horley but it
18] resulted in this final letter to him.
20  Q: Now,atone stageinyour telephone carnmunications with
(211 Horley, you claim to have revealed to him the multibrand
122 loyalty card proposal?

23 reflects conversations you had had with Mr Horley? E3 A: Yes.
41 A: Yes,Ibelicve so. . 124  Q: You are saying "yes'?
-5 Q: You would say that would you about the totality of the s A: Yes.
' Page & Page 8
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111 Q: Do you remember doing that?

1  A: Not clearly.

Bl Q: How poor is your recollection of doing that?

W A: Quite poor for any detail.

B Q: Are you actually certain of the general proposition that
18] you did reveal to Horley the multibrand loyalty card

(M proposal?

@  A: Yes, because of the notes that arc contained in the

@) letter.

po]  Q: So your position is that the letter says you did and

[11] therefore you did?

{12)  A: That is my reminder, yes.

(19 Q: You have no independent recollection of doing it, apart
(14] from this letter, would that be right?

1s A Very vague, very vague.

re) Qi Was your recoflection vague when you prepared your
[17] witness statement for the purposes of these proceedings?
1 A: Just as vague, but reminded by the information that is
[19] contained in the letters.

20 Q: You felt ablc to indicate a date in July 1990 when you
1211 had this conversation with Horley. Are you able now to

{27} indicate a date for that conversation with Horley?

11 Q: How come then that you did?

2 A: I think the conversation led that way.

@ @ Did you lead it that way?

#1  A: I probably did, yes.

=  Q: He would not have, would he, because he did not know

& what you had to tell him?

m A No. ‘

@ Q: Did you, before speaking to Horley on the multibrand
| loyalty concept, discuss the fact that you were going to

(1o do so with John Donovan?

111 A: I probably would have done loosely.

523  Q: You have to be more helpful than that please?

(1% A: Ifthe conversation had heen specificand wewere going
{#4] to make a major proposal, I think I probably would have

118] had a formal proposal form written out with notes to

118 refer to.

171 Q: Let me be clear on this. I think I had understood that
i13) the revelation to Horley about the multibrand loyalty

[19] card scheme was samcthing which occurred in the course
1201 of the conversation on your initiative?

@1 A: Yes.

@2 Qi Would I be right in understanding, therefore, that this

291  A: No,Ican't recall. 129] revelation occurred without any prior discussion between
1241  Q: You say in your witness statement that it was about 20th (24] yourself and John Donovan to the effect that you were
{25 July? [25] going to do it?
Page € - Page 11
1M A: Yes, that is a guess. i A! Ican't recall a2 specific.
@  Q: You described the conversation in your witness 12 Q: If you had had a conversation with John Donovan, that

3] statement. What I would like you to do is to describe
K] the conversation now fram your recollection.
51  A: I'was better able to do that of course with all of the
(6] information that I had in front of me.
i1 Q: What did you have in front of you?
®  A: ButI think I recall I would normally basically follow
19 some documents for prompting, which certainly would have
{10 been in the letters on the file to that point, and then
[11] would have gone on to just cover as fnany matters as
(12] possible that were contained within that.
(13  GQ: When you contacted Horley, as I understand it, you had
[t4) been deputed by John Donovan to speak to him about the
18] game proposal which had been ventilated in the earlier
e} letter?
1171 A: Yes.
18 Q: So you were not initially deputed by John Donovan to
18] speak to him about 2 multibrand loyalty card programme
[20] at all, were you?
11 A: That does not seem to be the case from my ariginal
122 letter, no.
23  Q: Youwerenotdeputedto speak to himabout amultibrand
{24] loyalty card scheme at all?
281  A: No.
- Page 10

31 would be something you would recall, would it not?
¥l A: Not necessarily. It may have been that I may have said
[ to John Donovan that [ am going to speak to Mr Horley,
6! and if I had an opportunity I might mention to him the
7 multibrand loyalty programme during the conversation, if
@ there was an opportunity. I might ask for 2 meeting to
153 make 2 more formal presentation to him. I can’t recall
167 the exact content of the telephone conversation.
it Q: In order to have made a proposal to Horley about the
(t2] multi-brands concept, you would have to know what it
[13 was, would you not?
4 A: Yes,
(151  Q: When,according to your recollection, did John Donovan
1161 reveal to you the multibrand loyalty card concept?

171 A: We had been talking about it for some years on and off.
f1a]  Q: Some years?

11e]  A: Yes, we had been developing it for quite a long while.
2  Q: How many ycars?

21 A: A couple of years, three years maybe. [ am not certain

(221 about that, but we were certainly discussing it and

[?3] developing our thoughts on it for a very long while,

2] Q: And your thoughts, that is your collective thoughts on

{25] the subject -

Page 12
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(11 A: Thatisled by John Donovan.
@  Q: Yes.The thoughts that you had been exchanging on the
@ subject of the multibrand loyalty card concept; you are
] saying a couple of years, it is measured in years.
/B A: Yes.
B  Q: And that is a couple of years prior to this letter of
7 24th July 19907
®  A: Well, originally, we had thc Mcgamatch game that was
1] devised in 1985/86 I think, and this really was a
(10) further development of that.
(1 Q: Speaking in terms of this being a further development of
(12) that, “this", for the purposes of the transcript, is the
119] letter of 24th July 1990 to Horley. Thisisa
%] refinement, is it not, of earlier thoughts?
1159  A: Yes.
(16  Q: And,asIunderstand the position, the person who was
117 the author of the refinements was John Donovan?
1ra]  A: Yes.
11gp Qi IfI have understood the position correctly, the
20 refinements include the use of Smart cards, issuing and
{21] redeeming partners and all of that sort of stuff?

e A Yes.
B9

Q: When did John Donovan reveal to you the cnhancements
24) that we sce set out in this letter?

e A: 1987/88.

Page 13

t11  Q: As I understand it, the information was that Shell was
(2] not interested at that time?

B  A: Ng, they were interested in long-term.

¥l  Q: What do you mean "interested in long-term”.

B A: Well, a project that may be developed at a later date.

i1  Q: They were not interested in going ahecad with it at that
{71 point in time?

©  A: Notimmediately, no.
g Q: Not for the foreseeable future, correct?
nap A No.
titf Qi When you say "no", do you mean not?
{127 A: [ am saying, no, not for the foreseeable future.
(13  Q: That is right. So your recollection is that you gave

(#4] Horley information about the multibrand loyalty
(15] programune before you obtained clearance from anyone at
116 Shell to do so, is that correct?
(177 A: Yes, it may be that way around, yes.
(1) Q: Didyouregardthe multibrandloyalty programme concept
{19) as a very original ~ the card concept as a very
(20] original and innovative thing?
121 A: Certainly.
23  Q: Had vou, prior to seeking Paul King's authorisation,
(23} revealed that to anybody at Shell? Had you revealed the
[24] concept to anyone at Shell?
125  A: Paul King.
Page 15

M Q: He did not reveal them to you in the run up to this
12 letter on 24th July 1990, the last few days of it?

B A: Much longer than that previously.

Ul Q: You are sure about that, aren’t you?

B A: Yes, I am fairly sure about that, yes.

8] Q: Did you say "very surc™?

M  A: Fairly sure.

@ Q: As sure as you are about anything -

(51  A: Itis putting fine dates on it that I am unable to do.
(1 Qi But we arc measuring it in years. When you came to
i11) disclose the proposal to Horley, had you previously
[12] indicated to anyone at Shell UK that you were going to
3] disclose it to Horley?
(14  A: Paul King.
1185  Q: And that was prior to making the disclosure down the

{(16] telephone to Horley, was it?

1 A: Yes.
(18]  Q: How far in advance -
1g)  A: Sorry,no. I have got that slightly wrong. The

(201 sequence of cvents probably were, I spoke to Horiey

{21] about it and then had to speak to Paul King to be able

122} to give Horley further information.

{23) Q: What further information did King authorisc you to give
2] to Hodey?

s} A: The fact that Shell would be interested.

o Page 14

M Qi Whent
B  A: Certainly in 89, as per the note of the letter we wrote
3} - we read a short while ago.
¥l  Q: Let me follow up on that, Are you saying that in 1989
[ you revealed to Paul King substantially the same
6] information as we sce set out in this letter of 24th
@ July 1990?
B  A: Sorry, would you repeat the question?
@  Q: Areyou saying that in 1989 you had revealed to Paul
g King substantially the same information as we see set
{11] out in this letter of 24th July 19907
1z A: Yes.
(13 Q: How clear is your recollection on that?
{14  A: Not very, but we were having ongoing discussions with
157 Paul King as to the development or how things were
(16) developing.
(i1 Q: I'would like you, please, to take your witness
18] statement, which you will find in volume C1 at tab 2.
(18] It is tab 2, paragraph 14 I would like you to look at
[2q1 first.This is where you are discussing these matters
121] that I have been discussing with you just now.
12z A: Yes.
23 Q: Iassume you are familiar with the contents of your own
[24] witness statement?
125 A: Yes.
Page 16
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{3 Q: In paragraph 14 you say:
@  “Around 20th July 1990, John Donovan asked me to
@) take over dealing ‘with the approach to Sainsbury because
¥] he had become so heavily involved with the Star Trek
5] project, which by then Shell seemed very likely to
il adopt.” Right?
m  A: Yes.
g  Q: “JohnDonovan asked me to telephone Brian Horley, who
) was the Advertising and Marketing Manager of Sainsbury.
110) During my conversation with Horley, I disclosed the
{11] multibrand loyalty card scheme after seeking and
12 receiving his undertaking of strictest confidentiality”,
Ha A Yes.
(4]  Q: As I understand this, you are saying here that you did
1] it of your own initiative?
pe]  A: Yes.
171 G You say:
~ pe "1 putit forward because, having listencd to his
f19] comments, it seemed a more likely prospect for joint
{2q] activity with Shell than Sainsbury becoming involved
{21] with a promotional game”,
. R A: Yes.
23] Q: That is your cvidence:
241 'Tnote that although Sainsbury has in recent
125 years launched the reward loyalty card scheme, it has

m A: Yes.
B  Q: So they had no pacticular interest, Mr Sotherton, did
@ they, in going forward with this proposal at that time?
¥l A No, not immediately.
i Q: They had no particular interest for the foresceable
g future?
m A Yes.
B  Q: Then you say:
9 'TIsuspected that he only expressed an interest
10 because he was intrigued by all the secrecy attached to
[11] the idea of 2 Shell/Sainsbury partnership promotion™.
Ha1 A: Yes.
(t31  Q: What gave you that impression?
14 A: Normally one would not have received a response from
[15] somebody like Sainsbury. They were known not to promote
16} actively beiow the line,
171 Q: What was it that he said or did that left you with the
(18 impression that he only expressed an interest because he
|181 'was intrigued by all the secrecy?
a7 A: The fact that he was not going to take the matter any
121] further.
122 Q: Atthis point in time you.r position in your witness
[22) statement is that you have not had a discussion with
24 King, because if you turn the page to paragraph 15 you
[25] say.
Page 19

Paga 17

[1} never conducted a Sainsbury’s promotional game. My
[2) assessment of what was likely to be the most appealing
1 promotional vehicle for Sainsbury has therefore proved
¥} to be correct. I explained the basics of the scheme

& with a commeon currency of loyalty points being

{5] substituted for the game pieces in the McgaMatch

7 concept. We talked about the shared costs and the type

& ) @ of loyalty card that would be required.”

81 Pausing there, you are saying, are you, that you
ita discussed the use of Smart cards with him and the way in
[11) which the cards would be used?
1z A: Yes.
(131 Q: You talked about shared costs. What was it about costs
{14] that you discussed?
5] A: That would have been the shared costs for funding the
[16] entire exercise, and how it could be proportionalised
[17] through the different trades or industries.
'8} Q: You went into that degree of detail with Horley, did
g yout?
20 A: Yes, but only - that is only a small dcta.il 1o say that
21 it would be proportional.

i1 "However, John Donovan and I decided that it would
[21 be appropriate to send a letter to Mr Horley, confirming
@) what had been discussed, and the basis on which the

#] discussions had been concluded™

|| "We drafted a letter and sent a copy by fax to

(8} Paul King, probably on the same date, 20th July 1990".

7| Thatis your recollection, is it?

® ] A: Yes

B ° Q: 'l subsequently spoke by telephone to Paul King". Was

1o that subsequently the same day, Mr Sotherton, or

{11] subsequently at some later date?

112 A: I belicve it was on the same day. ]

na  Q: And what then was the gist of your conversation with
f14] Mr King that day?

(18 A: It would be to say that I had revealed that concept to
{161 Horley, and obviously wanting to respond to it to get

1t71 his approval to do so, and how we should go about it.

pg  Q: You are saying, are you, that Paul King expressed no
1] surprise or demur to - he did not raise any objcction

{20] in relation to your having discussed this with Sainsbury

{21] without clearing it with him first?

221 Q: You go on: @21 A: Not that I can recail,
23  "Mr Horley was interested but said that the timing 231 Q: If he had, you would have recalled, I expect?
[24] 'Was not appropriate for Sainsbury. They were not ready 24  A: Ormade a note of it, yes.
251 ta become involved in promotional activity™. Correct? = Q: And there are no notes?
it Page 18 Page 20
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11 A: There are no notes, no.
] Q: You say that, having spoken subsequentiy to King you
(3] made "some minor alterations to the draft by deleting a
#] paragraph about the research carried out for Shell in
[ relation to loyalty schemes.”
&8  What did that paragraph say?
7 A: Icant recall exactly, but the gist of it was that we
@ should not be releasing information that Shell could
[\ gain.
6]  Q: Could you say that again, please?
(111 A: The gist of it was that we should not be releasing
[12) information that Shell had obtained fror their research.
(18 Q: And what research was this referring to?
f)]  A: Thiswas referring to same research intoloyalty schemes
[15) that Paul King had had carried out, which I believe it
116j showed them not to be very, very popular.
t11  Q: Now, that paragraph was in the letter before King said
{18) "Take it out", was it?
na A: Yes.
tzq)  @Q: That would imply that you had revealed the information
121] about that research already to Hodey?
@2]  A: No, not necessarily.
B3 Q: Why not?
@4  A: Because the letter was going to —~ would be laying out

[25) in a little more detail to Horley the scheme, and we
Pags 21

1] @: "King then said that he had been instructed to seek an
{z] option on the multibrand loyalty card concept.”

@ A: Yes.
¥ @ Is that truc?
B A Yes.

el Q: He said in the course of your conversation about this
M letter that he has not seen before that he had

{8l instructions to seek an option on the concept?

{99 A: We had lots of conversations following this through at
(10 different times, but in essence that is it, yes.

(111 Q: What are these "lots of conversations” you are talking
1z) about, pleasc?

(13  A: Discussing all of these matters that are contained in
(14] here, and I think there arc a couple of other prospects

(15] going on as well, with some other promotional games,

{16) small promotional games.

(171 Q: Focusing on this concept that we are looking at here,
{18] the one that is being referred to in your cvidence, do

{19) you see that there were a number of conversations

je0] berween yourself and King about that?

@y A: Yes.

227 Q: Was John Donovan party to those discussions?

23] A: He was involved with those discussions.

4] Q: Was he a party to them in the sense that you sat down

[25] face to face with King and discussed these matters?
Page 23

(1] probably would have put that information in it to make
21 Mr Horley aware of that.
@  Q: Soyou are saying that King objected to the inclusion of
K] a paragraph about research but had no objection to your
®) fevealing an exciting new multibrand loyalty concept to
i8] Horley?
7 A: No.
®  Q: He had no objection to that?
]  A: No,not that I can recall
e G: Going on:
(111 "During my conversation with Paul King there was
[12) some mention about ownership rights to the concept™.
i3]  What mention and what discussion was that, please?
] A: Ican'trememberindetail but Paul King wondered where
115] we all stood, going back to the eariier days when we had
(18] presented the original MegaMatch proposals.
17 Q: Orindeed the revelation, as you would have it, of this
(18] very proposal to him some time previously?
1] A: Yes.
200 Q: You say that Mr King recalled that Shelt had contributed
[21] towards the costs of Project 1007
22 A: Yes.
23]  Q: 'Treminded him that their contribution was solely in
{24] respect of research costs".
1251 A: Yes.
S Page 22

(1 A: Not that I can recail.

21 Q@: So then it would have been you, would it, that had the
{3 discussions with King?

¥} A: Ithinkwe were shuttling calls backwards and forwards,
& If one was in the office one would take a call, but I

(6] suppose it would be fair to say that I was working

7] alongside John with pursuing that matter.

B  Q: Arc you making this up as you go along?

©]  A: No,Iam just trying to recail,

1o @: Look: "Mr King then said he had been instructed to seek
111) an option on the muitibrand loyalty card concept”,

g A: Yes.
{13  Q: Who did he say had instructed him? Did he reveal that

[14] to you?

(15 A: No,1 have no notes to that effect, no.

(6]  Q: Did you ask him?

pn A: No.

(8 Q: You go on to say "... but went on to explain” s¢ King is

(18) explaining that his department only had budget available
{2q1 for the Star Trek scheme?

11  A: Yes.

227 Q: "Paul King dangled an additional carrot by saying that
[22] the scheme could have value to Shell in other markets as
124 well as in the UK."

25  A: Yes.
Page 24
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{11 Q: 'T had a discussion with John Donovan and telephoned
{&r Paul King back with an option arrangement that we knew
18 Shell would find acceptable.” ‘
¥ A Yes. :
1 Q: What was that option arrangement?
€  A: Thatifwereceived the Star Trekbusiness that we would
 hold the option open for Shell.
B  Q: And that was -
8  A: Virtually forever.
(g Q: Ibeg your pardon?
(1]  A: Forever.
1121 Q: Yes, forever,and you did receive the Star Trek
113 business, did you not?
41 A: Yes, we did.
(181 Q: Andtherefore youwereaware,youandJohn Donovan, on
[16] your own vession of cvents, were aware of the cxistence
[17] of the option at all relevant times subsequently, were
[1§] you not?
‘e A: Yes.
200  Q: You go on in this statement:
1} "If Shell went forward with the Star Trek concept
i 122) they would also seek an opticn on the multibrand loyalty
23] scheme. We did not include a time limit on the option
24] because we knew that Shell would be committed to short
[25] term promotions for a number of years. We were

Pags 25

1] administration.

2 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Once again, when you say "Itwould have
[@ been", "There must have been”, are you saying you assume

] there was or are you saying you recall there was?

ts]  A: Iam saying I assume there was.

1 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: You cannot recall it yourself?

m A No.

B MR HOBBS: Thenlam foxedastowhyyouassume there was,
@ if you have no recollection of it. What is it that

(10] makes you assume there was?

(11 A: That would be a standard office procedure.

(121 Q: It would be in a small office?

(3] Al Yes.

i1 Qi And how does it work then? You signed off your letter
(18 of 24th July, did you, you signed it?

ey A: Yes.
1 Q: What do you do about taking copies for the purposes of
[12) your files?

fe;  A: I'would not.

20 Q: Who would?

21  A: Sharon Peacock

2z @Q: And you would sign the letier. A copy would be made for
23} the purposés of the file, would it?

24 A: Yes.

1251 Q: And then where would it go from there?

Page 27

1) delighted...” and so on.
@@ You say in paragraph 16:
1 'l sent the amended letter to Mr Horley on 24th
¥] July 1990 with a copy of the section from our proposal
@ to Shell dated 23rd October 1989.7
1  Can I ask you this: do you have a clear
M recollection of sending that letter of 24th July 19907
7 @  A: No,butl have it noted somewhere I think.
9] Q: Why are you able to say, as you do here, that you sent
[10] it? What is your basis for that statement?
(1] At Somewhere in the files is a note to that effect.
pz1 Q: Is there?
1181 A: There must be, yes.
4]  Q: Which files?
(15]  A: Well, Don Marketing’s own files.
‘6]  Q: Do you have a post book?
(171 A: No,Iam no longer involved with Don Marketing.
18]  Q: Did they have a post book at the time?
(19)  A: I am unsure.
2a)  @: There are six people in this office and you were
[21] regularly in that office. Did they have a post back?
22}  A: I would assume that there must have been a post book,
23 yes.
24 = Q: Where was it? Who kept it?
sl  A: It would have been one of the young ladieslooking after

Page 26

111 A: 1 would have a file. She would file it in its relevant
{2) file. It may be one that she would copy to John
[3] Donovan, to his own personal file.

¥ Q: Did you say you would have a file?

B A Yes.

61 Q: You were a freelance in 1990, or were you an employee in
@ 19907

©  A! An empioyee in 1990,

s} Q! Did you keep your files when you ceased to be employed
{10] and became a freclancer to the firm?

{11  A: Yes, there was some information that was kept.

(1z]  Q: Have you kept files in your house relating to these

[13] matters that we are discussing here?

(4]  A: Ihad done.

5]  Q: Until when?

(16)  A: last Octoberish.

(177 Q: Did you not think that they cught to be kept beyond

(18 October?

119]  A: No,I did not, and the reason I disposed of the files

20] was I had a burglary, and it was rather a strange

[21] circumstance really, because very little was taken but

[22) small items of jewcllery left laying around, and at a

[23] later point I discovered that these files had actually

{24] been tampered with, although at the point that the

[25] police were called, the scenes of crimes officers went
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(1} over the house, I had not noticed that any of it had

1% been disturbed. At that point I wondered, as other

@] people that appeared to be involved as witnesses in this
M] case or whatever, who also had burglaries, that 1 no

151 longer wanted any of the paperwork with anything to do
61 with these matters, and passed them back to John

@ Donovan,

@  Q: S0 you passed your files back to him?
5]  A: Yes. He has had them since about last October.
(to] Q: How complete were those files?
(117  A: Not very. Very limited.
pz @ They were so complete that you did not notice to begin

{13] with that anything was missing from them, correct?
(4]  A: No, they were actually in date order, and there were
(15 also some personal files as well and items from my
{16] personal files had somchow got physically into the file
{171 that contained information not only about the Shell

_ (1e] business but other business as well, and the whole thing
11e; had been upset,
2o Q: And you stripped out, did you, and gave back to John
211 Donovan the bits that related to Shell?

A: Anything that related to anything thatwasnot personal,
" @] yes.
24  Q: Doyourcmemberwhenyou first wentinto the witness box

125] I was asking you questions about a letter before action
Page 29

11 not leading anything at all. It was obviously that was

121 John Donovan that was —-

@ Q: Close up your witness statement, please, and go back to
] the letter that we still have open in the other file.

B MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Which one is that?

© MRHOBBS: E1,449.1 am going to go through with you
[7] certain points under the heading "A multibrand loyalty
] programme" This is your letter to Horley, Now, are

{9 you quite sure that this letter was sent and that this

10] letter was written at this time?

i1 A Yes.

(171 Q: Are you really sure that that is so? Is it your

13 evidence on oath to my Lord that it was?

114  A: Yes.

5]  Q: Under that heading you say:

6§ "When the timing is suitable for Shell, Sainsbury

171 will be willing to consider the consortiuim-based

18] customer loyalty proposal which, with Shell's approval,
{191 we disclosed to you in strictest confidence.”

[20) When did you get Shell's approval for the oral

21} disclosure down the telephone?

2] (12.15 pm).

231 A: (Pause). That would have been a couple of days before,
1247 Q: Before what?

zs]  A: Beforc the letter was writtcn.

Page 31

{1 which was written by John Donovan in April 19977
21 A: I have a vague remembrance of that, yes.
@1 Q: This happened on Friday I think Is your memory that
©] bad?
B  A: Itis unfortunately. This weekend [ have just been
1g] through a traumatic house completion, and it has been
@ rather upsetting because the people that we were
/8 completing the house with would not move out and did not
i8] move out until Sunday, so it has not helped my memory at
o] all.
1) Q: Look, when I asked about correspondence and letters
(120 which were mentioned in that letter before action of
113 April 1997,1 was not aware at that point in time that
14} you had your own files in your own house in date order
{15 relating to thosc matters?

i16]  A: To some of the matters.

7 Q: Some of the matters?

118 A: Yes, it was not a complete file.

119  Q: Youmust, therefore, when that letter before action came

[20 to be written, you know what I am talking about, do you
[21] not, the April 1997 letter -
Rz A Yes, I think so.
23]  Q: You must have checked your own files relating to those
{24] matters for corresponding letters, must you not?
51~ A: Idon't think I did. I don't recail that I did. I was,
o Page 30

[ Q: No, before the telephone conversation surely?
@ A: Oh-
@ Q: When did you get Shell's approval for the oral
¥1 disclosure down the telephone to Horley?
5 A: Iam not certain I did,
6  Q: Sothat letter is not accurate insofar as it may suggest
7 that you did have Shell’s approval to speak to Horley?
B  A: Ithink that was after the event, yes.
@1 Q: Right:
(o]  “Copies of pages 12, 13 and 14 of Concept Four, a
[11] section of a multiconcept proposal we presented to
1#2) Shell, are attached for your information.”
(13  You had permission to do that, you say?

4]  A: Yes.

15  Q: Who gave you that permission?

(16]  A: Paul King.

{7 Q: Did it ever occur to you that it would have been

[18] appropriate to speak to Stuart Carson on these matters?

1e] A: No.

2oy  Q: Did you know that Paul King had been sidelined within
1211 Shell at this point?

1zz1  A: Imust have done. Because, of course, Stuart Carson was
{za] there as National Promotions Manager,

24  Q: Did you know that your colleague, John Donovan, was

125] dealing, at this very point in time, with Stuart Carson
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(1] on the Star Trek promotion?

@ A Yes.

@  Q: IfI have understood you correctly, the option in

] relation to this multibrand foyaity programme was linked

151 to Star Trek?

] A: Yes.

m  Q: Areyou saying that you did not think it was appropriate
E to speak to Stuart Carson at this point in time about

(] these matters?
tie1  A: No, because Paul King was confidence in what he was
{111 doing. He knew what he was doing. He was involved in
12) that. ’
1y Q: Continutng in this paragraph, you say:

[14]  "We foresee a wide variety of redemption options,

(15} perhaps including Air Miles.”

(16  Had you discussed that on the telephone with

1171 Horley, according to your evidence?

118  A: Not that I can recall.
(18]  Q: Soyou had not mentioned Air Miles to Horley -
o)  A: Notin the original conversation.
211  Q: No.Going ahcad:
22l  "As mentioned, if the project proceeds, Shell

1237 would be the lead partner in organising the consortium
{241 which would consist of a range of retailers, plus
125) possibly fast moving consumer goods brands and other
Page 33

M) "The partners could issue the currency against a

2 different purchase value. For cxample, on¢ point with
@ every &5 spent at Shell stations and one point with

¥ every &2 spent at Sainsburys. Some other busincsses
5 might be linked to the scheme only to the extent of
6] redeeming the promotional currency.”

M A: Yes.

@ Q: You say you revealed that to Horley at the time?
g1 A: Inessence, yes.

o) O: Turning over to the top of the page:

(111  "Being the originators of the idea, Don Marketing
112 and our Marketing Director, John Donovan, who has a
(13 personal stake in the project, would require an
{14] appropriate concept fee, a role in the promotion ..."
[15)  What was the point of writing to Horley about
{16 this?
{171 At Because DonMarketing were known actually for supplying
(18] promotional game. This is not actually a promotional
19} game.That was just making it clear as to where
rzor Don Marketing benefits would come from. Previously, of
[21] coursc, we were literally selling game cards - numbers
1221 of game cards and taking commissions on the production
123) of the game cards.
24) Q: Do you say that you had raised that matter, the matter
(zs) of the financial aspects of this, with Horley in
Page 35

{1] businesses, with each partner operating the scheme on an
{2) exclusive basis within their own market sector.”
] A: Yes.
Bl Q: Do you say you rcvealed substantially that to Horley in
5] conversation with hina?
61  A: In essence, yes.
7  Q: You go on to say:
| "The programme could even be sct up as a separate
{9 business venture in which all the partners issuing and
[0} redeeming the commen promotional currency could share
{11] the costs and the benefits."
[122 What did you mean when you wrote "could even be
(19 set up as a separate business" What did you envisage?
1t4)  A: Thatcach ofthose participating partners would each own
115} a proportion pro rata of that business, that company.
116  Q: What is that you are seeking to draw out by referring to
7] it as a "separate” business, as opposed to a simple
{18] consortium?
(19 A: Well, away from the main line business.
2o Q: Do you say that you revealed that concept or that
(21) proposal to Horley in conversation?

1] conversation before this letter was sent?
21 A: I probably would not have gone into such detail.
3  Q: Would you have raised the matter even in not that
¥ detail?
51 A: I do not think so.
6 Q: You do not think you raised it?
M A: No.
@  Q: "Paul King of Shell has given me authority to disclose
[ to you that he recently approached Tesco to explore the
[10] possibility of a joint promotion. This followed up a
(1] meeting which John Donovan had with Tesco directors some
112] time ago on the Shellled consortium principle. ™
[13] When was that mecting?
4]  A: I cannot recall, and it is not noted there.
1181 @ Doyourememberanysuchmecting,even thoughyou cannot
{161 recall when it occurred?

71 A: Ido not actuaily, no.
(18] Qi Continuing;
(g1 "AlthoughTesco apparently gave a favourable

[20 response to FKB, Shell senior management decided against
[211 pursuing the discussions with Tesco. We have reason to

227  A: In essence, probably, yes, 1227 belicve that Sainsburys would be Shell's preferred

23] Q: How probably? [23] partner.”

24 A: Itis very likely. ¢ Who gave you authority to write that?

g Q: You say: #5)  A: Ido not know that we had any authority, specific
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(1 authority, but the subject had come up in discussion a
[ number of times and Sainsburys were seen to be the
[91 upmarket supermarket that would ‘want to be associated -
@] that Shell would want associated with their name.
B Q: Continuing you say;
6] "We informed Shell of our discussions with you and
7 Mr King subscquently approved the content of this
e} letter, which was drafted following a long telephone
9] conversation with him."
r1e; A: Yes.
(1] Qi I note there that you are saying the letter was drafted
112) following a long telephone conversation with him, rather
(13 than the other way round:; that the letter proceeded in
14] draft form after the conversation with him?

t15]  A: Yes.
1161 Qi Which way round was it?
(171~ At The conversation with Paul King, drafting of letter,

181 further conversation with Paul King, final letter.
" per Qi Did that all happen on 20th July, according to your
1207 recollection?
=i} At Onorabout.
@2  Q: Allin onec day?
23]  A: It would probably have been spread over a couple of
[24] days.
@51 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Sotherton, do you remember the
Page 37

(11 or Shell will be in contact with you". There was no

(2] basis, cven on your own cvidence, was there?

B At T do not recail.

# Qi Continuing, it says;

B "Bearing in mind the cyclical nature of

6] promotional activity on petrol forecourts, we anticipate

[ that there is likely to be a substantial interval,

12] perhaps five years or six years, before Shell decides

g} that the timing is suitable.”

1o Do you say it was King who suggested that figure

[11) of five years or siX ycars?

121 At No - well, it may have been Paul, but it was probably
(s3] John Donovan's crystal ball.

1141 Q¢ His erystal ball?

1i5] A Yes.

116) Qi Areyousaying thatyou had made statements to Horley to
{17 substantially the effect of that paragraph I have just

g read you before you wrote this letter?

pgl At No.
Ba Qi No.Look at the next paragraph:
21}  "The proposed multibrand loyalty scheme could

;22 utilise plastic Swipe Cards. In the not too distant
3] future a multipurpose Simart Card could not only process
241 the common promotional currency, but aise provide other
[z5) functions including data capture and even financial
Page 39

[1] sequence, or are you trying to reconstruct it?

@ A: No,I-IthinkIam probably reconstructing it.
@  MRHOBBS: In the next paragraph you say:
] "Either Don Marketing or Shell will be in contact

(g1 with you at an appropriate date in the future to discuss
[6] making a detailed presentation to Sainsburys and other
71 sclected potential partners.”
@ How did you know that?
& A: (Pause).lcan only assume that Paul King had indicated
(10] that, if things were to move forward at a later date,
[11] there would obviously be that contact that it mentions,
112) by cither one of us; Don Marketing or Paul King or
[13] Shell. '
(14} Q: In fact you knew, did you not, at the time - in 1990 ~
[15] according to your own version of these events, that
116) Shell was not interested in proceeding and Sainsburys
1171 were not interested in proceeding?
(18  A: No, not in the near future,
i Q: Or the foreseeable future actually. You knew that, did

[201 you not?

1 A: Yes.

2z Q: Even on your own version of events you knew that?
23 - A: Yes.

24 Q: There is no basis and there was no basis, cven in your

[25} own evidence, for writing that statement "Don Marketing
= Page 38

{11 transactions. We have already discussed possibilitics
2] with Barclays Bank It is possible that the cards
8] could, to same degree, be personalised in terms of
#) design and function to suit the marketing objectives of
{5 individual partners, who could reap the benefits of
{e} shared customer data, shared costs and unprecedented
[ advertising exposure at many thousands of retail
] outlets.”
(8]  Are you saying you revealed substantially that
(o] information to Horley in conversation before this
111 letter?
17 Ar No, notall of it.
(131 Q: Which bits of it?
(4]  A: Certainly the Swipe Cards, which wasatermthatTused,
[15] and certainly the data capture facility, as they were
[16] two important parts of it.
1177 Qi And you say you revealed that orally - those
(18] points ~ to Horley in conversation before this letter?
g A Yes.
2o Q; Right Do you wish to réconsider then what you said a
[21] few moments ago - it is more than a few moments ago
[27] actually - in relation to that sentence there:
23 "I trust that the above account accurately
t24] reflects the various matters disclosed and discussed.”

25] I think, on your own evidence just now, you did
Page 40
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{13 not discuss all of those matters or disclose all of them

72 to Horley? )
B  A: No,some of them are being revealed as new in the text
¢} of the jetter,
B i Which of them do you regard as innovative at the date of
[6] this letter?

7  A: Thecombining togetheror the essence of the multibrand
] consortium and its use of electronic-type cards for
9 gaining the information and the common currency.
o Qi Mr Sotherton, this letter substantially describes the
i11] Shell Smart Scheme, does it not?
1z A: Yes.
19 Qi And was it written with knowledge of the Shell Smart
(141 Scheme?
1181 A: How could it be? -
1e Qi Wasitwritten with knowledge of the Shell Smart Scheme?
11 A: No.
pe Qi So you foresaw, did you, what was going to come to pass
(19 in five or six years' time?
2  A: I think that was a good guess.
1] Qi Turn to the letter, please, which is on page 446.
ez A: Yes.
23 Q: This is you again, and this time we have a copy of your
[34] signature on the letter?
@5 A Yes.

Page 41

Wl Your evidence is, is it not, that the letter we
{22 were just looking at is the enclosed letter?
@ A Yes.
#  Q: "The letter does get across the message you were keen to
B convey: that Shell view Sainsburys as an ideal partner.
) They are apparently not considered to be too
7} downmarket."
@  You go on to say:
i1  "Sainsburys’unexpected intcrest at least spurred
{10) us on to put some flesh on the initial proposal we
[11] discussed with you and Tim some months ago."
11z MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Have you finished with that second
[13] paragraph, Mr Hobbs?
14 MR HOBBS: I have, my Lord.
(155 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Sotherton, as I understand the
18] evidence you have given, Shell were not interested at
{171 this time in a multibrand loyalty scherme?
He A Yes.
1gg MR JUSTICE LADDIE: And, from your conversations with
[2q Sainsburys, Sainsburys was not interested ina
[21) multibrand loyalty scheme, certainly not for the
[22) immediate and maybe not for the long future?
12a] A: Yes.
1 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; You say in the second paragraph;
125 "The letter [the letter to Sainsburys] does get
Pagse 43

11 Qi What was your normal practice in this connection?
{2 Because your signature does not appear on page 450.
1 A: I probably signed it before copies were made.,
B @ How do you account then for the absence of your
s signature on 4507
@  A: Isee that it has got circulation, so maybe I was given
1 the original to sign for posting and the rest were filed
| without signature.
[ Q¢ You sce, these two letters would have gone out at the
(1 same time, would they not? Because they are closely
{11] related, they have been produced under paratlel
iz circumstances and they are both dated 24th July?
13 A: Yes.
14l Qi 446; this is your letter to King. Do you remember this
ng letter?
18] At Yes,inasmuch as I have it in front of ree and am
{171 reminded by the content of it.
18] Qi "Thank you for confirming by telephone Shell’s approval
18] of the letter to Sainsburys, which you have now cleared
{201 with Stuart Carson and senior management,”
211  What was the source of your information there?
227 At Paul King.
23  Q: "As per instructions, we have deleted the reference to
24 the research findings. The revised version enclosed has
_[25] been mailed to Sainsburys.”
& Page 42

{1] across the message you were keen to convey ..."
27 A: Yes.
B MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Why were they keen to convey that they
#] wanted Sainsburys to be a partner in a project they were
5] not keen to have?
te1 At That was Paul King on the basis that, if there is a
M sudden change, that Sainsburys would be the ideal
(8] partner because they were not too downmarket.
@ MR JUSTICE LADDIE: And they wantedyouto tell them thatin
[10] case they changed their mind some years in the future?
1111 A: Probably, yes.
22 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Yousay "probably". Do you rememberit,
{13] Or ar< you trying to reconstruct?
(4] At I do have vague recollections of that discussion,
[18) because it was discussed on a number of occasions. So
{16] that is obviously the reason for its inclusion in the
{17 letter.
18 MR HOBBS: Something has just been pointed out tome that
f19] I ought to point out to you: the letter of
120] 24th July 1990 and the letter of 24th July 1990 at
[21] 449 - s0 the letter at 446 and the letter at 449 are
[22] both same date. They both carry the same reference
231 "RGS/SDP"?
241 A: Yes.
(25  Q: There is an oddity. Why is it that the word
Page 44
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1] "Sainsburys" is written every timue it appears with "'s"
[@ in the letter in 446 and it is not written in that way
{8 every time it appears in the other letter at 4497
¥l (12.30 pm)
B At 1really cannot imagine.
€] Qi But you proofread documents extremely carefuily, do you
[71 not?
B Ad Yes.
B Qi These letters were supposedly from the reference typed
{10] by "SDP", were they not?
(11 Al Yes.
1121 Q: Speaking purely for myself, I would expect a secretary
113] Lke Sharon Peacock to use the same way of writing
[14] "Sainsburys" from one letter to the next on the same
[t5] day. Would you not?
18]  A: Yes, but the reference would not necessarily mean that
[171 Sharon had typed it.
p8] Qi Who did, if she did not?
A; Tt would have been one of the other young ladlies that
[20] were there at the time,
R1} Qi And both letters go out under your signature with that
[22] niggling disconformity between the two?
23]  A: Yes That may also have been the reason that one has a
[24] signature and one does not.
125  Q:t We have the paragraph on 446, the third paragraph:
Page 456

(11 Qi Do you remember the enhancement taking place?

i1 A Not exactly, no.

3  Q: You would not have been responsible for those

#] enhancements anyway, would you?

E  A: 1'would have been involved but not responsible.

i Qi You would not have generated them, would you?

M  A: Imay have done.

@  Qt Youmighthave generated the enhancements that we see
t9] summed up in the -

po]  A: I'would have been involved in the generation of those
(11} enhancements.

izt Qi What role would you have played?

a3 Ar Working alongside John Donovaninthe development of
(44} that, Normally we would work with promotional games.

1151 John would concentrate on concepts and my role was very
(tg; much to provide a game mechanic and secure print.

171 Qi This is not a game? '

18] At No, it is not. Nevertheless, we would both have input
{191 into the development.

o) Gt What was your input to the enhanced concept?
21] A: I donotrecail.
221 Q: Doyourecallmaking anyinput to the enhanced concept?

1z A; Yes,Irecall making day-to-day input to the development

24) of that and also the marketing of that.

5] Qi Atwhat point in time do you claim to have made input to
Paga 47

p1  "Sainsburys’ unexpected interest at least spurred
{2 us on to put some flesh on the initial proposal we
@) discussed with you and Tim some months ago.”

K1 Do you have that scntence in mind?

sl A: Yes,Ihave,

61 Qi What did you mean by "some months ago"?

@M  A: There had been ongoing discussions with Paul King with

@ regard to the multibrand loyalty scheme, and that is

[9] saying we arc developing it just slightty more.
ital  Q: You say "slightly more”, What prompts you to say
(1] “slightly” more?
121 At Becauscthere were little developments that were taking
[13] place all along, where different considerations were
(14] being made as to its technical ability, what information
{15) could be gleaned and so on.
tel @ You are saying that Sainsburys’' unexpected interest
1171 spurred you on to put some flesh on the proposil; yes?
e Ar Yes.

/e Q: Right. In what way and with what cffect did it spur you
[20) on?
21 At To keep the project going and to try and encourage

1221 people to take it up, to take the scheme up.

23  Qr You,in fact, according to this letter, were spurred by
[2¢] Sainsburys’interest to enhance carlier thoughts?

[25-  A: Yes.

Page 46

(] the enhanced concept?
71 A: Onan ongoing basis. I cannot think of a specific point
[ in time.
¥l Q: So it could not be true, could it, looking at this
i5) letter, that the enhanced concept was fully worked up
|§] years before the date of this letter?
7 A: I supposc there was always room for improvement.
@  Q: It could not be true, could it, that the enhanced
{9 concept was worked up years in advance of this letter of
{iq] 24th July 19907
(111 At No, I take your point,
121 Qi Youaccept that, do you not?
13 A: Yes.
141 Qi So the question I have for you is; when, during
115 July 1990, do you claim, with John Donovan, o have
(18] enhanced the concept?
1n  Ac I do not recall.
(18 Q: Is that because there is nothing to recall because you
fig] did not, yoursclf, have any role in enhancing any
2q) earlier concept? i
=1 A: I think I would have had involvement, yes. 1 do recail
[22) it being an ongoing process, but I could not be
{23] specific.
1241  Q: You are saying in this [etter, if I have understood the
[25) letter correctly, that Sainsburys has given you impetus
Page 48
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(1] to put some flesh on the initial proposal. You are
T2} saying that here. Is that your recollection of what

B happened at the time?

#]  A: Yes, I think so.That is encouragement, is it not?

B @ Your ncxt sentence says;

1§81  "Your brief challenged us to devise an innovative

{7} leap forward in loyaity schemes. We delivered the

©l goods."

g1 A: Yes.
g Qi That, if T understand it correctly, is saying that you
[11] made an innovative leap forward in response Sainsburys'
112 unexpected interest and, therefore, this innovative leap
(13 forward occurred in July 19907
(4 Az I am sorry, I do not think I understand the question.
(15 Qi We will read this slowly. It says:
[18] "Your brief challenged us to devise an innovative
{171 lcap forward in loyalty schemes. We delivered the
1] goods."
ne At Yes.
2o  Q: Do you not understand that to be saying that you have in
121} fact delivered an innovative leap forward as a result of
221 Sainsburys’ uncxpected intercst?

R3] A Yes, yes. I understand what you arc saying now, yes.

@4  Q: Is that your cvidence and your recollection to my Lord;
[25] that that is what you claim to have done?

Page 49

11 Q! You are saying that you used research to make the
{21 enhancement i the expanded proposal, are you not?

B A Yes.

¥ Q: Is that true?

51 Ai Yes.It would point development in the right direction,
&1  Q: Sorry?

M A: It would point development in the right direction.

#]  Q: And you went back to that research, did you, in order to

19} make the expanded proposal which we have seen described
1i¢t in the other letter?
1] A: We would have done.

(121 Q: How long did it take you to come up with the expanded
" 113 proposal?

(4 Ar I cannot recall.

(18] Qi Days?

116]  A: Probably.

i G Weeks?

(18 A: Days, I would think.

119 Q: Goingon:

1zq  "Although we made some suggestions to enhance

211 Collect and Select, a revolutionary concept along the

(2} lines proposed would put Shell miles ahead of the

(23] opposition if you decide to return to collection schemes

{24] at a later date.”

@51 Do you see those words "a revolutionary concept™

Page 51

M A: Yes.

2] Q: In July 19907

@ A: Yes.

¥l Qi Then you go on;

51  "The expanded proposal, as sct out in the agreed

6] letter to Sainsburys, provides the answers to the
M failings in loyalty schemes which our research
® identified.”

) What research is that?

(tm A Research that we carried out amongst motorists with
{111 regard to the popularity of forecourt pramotion schemes,
112 Qi When did you carry out that research?

113 At I do not recall exactly. That was done at

[14] John Donovan's instigation, and it did happen on two or
(5] three occasion that I can recall back in those years.

t16) Qi Backin...

1171 A: Those years.

118  Q: What years?

19 A: The pre-1990 years.

0] G The pre-1990 years. Look at that sentence, which goes

[21] on to say;

Rzl "The research was invaluable, as incidentally was

1231 the analysis carried out by Jill Shaw on the Fundraisers

{24). project.”

=51 A Yes.

o Page 50

11 A: Yes.

2 Gt Why are you laughing?

) A: Itisa glossy word, is it not? It is gloss on what in

M) factitis.

B  Q: Whataboutan "innovative leap forward"? Does that make
6] you laugh?

1 A: Thatalso ...

B Qi Is that what you thought it was; a revolutionary
19 concept? '
e A: Yes.

[} Qi Are you saying to my Lord that you recollect disclosing
(12) that revolutionary concept orally down the telephone to

f13] Horley before you told King about it?

(141 At No,we hadalready been discussing it with Paul King on
[15] an ongoing basis,

6] Qi Soyouhad discussed the revolutionary concept, hadyou,
{17] as you said earlicr, in the years preceding 19907

(181 A: Yes.

1]  Q: Conatinuing;

29  "Even though senior management accepted our

[21] recommendation to come out of long-term schemes for the
(29) forcsceable future, it is nice to know that they want to

(23] keep our multibrand loyalty concept in the locker.”

[#]  When did you make that recommendation that you are

125 referring to in that first sentence?
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1 (12.45 pm) it As Right.
@ A: 1do not recall that I made the recommendation., @ Qi And you wanted to keep it going?
@ Qi Who did? : B A: Yes, to keep the interest.
#l  Ar John Donovan. #)  Q: You are saying, are you, that Shell's senior management
B Qi When did he make it? 51 authorised to you reveal a revolutionary concept in

®  A: I'would not be certain. Some time prior to this letter
71 being produced. If [ am vague about certain aspects of

@} the letter of course it is because that at the time it

18] was written with John Donovan.

(0] Q: Recording a conversation that you claim to have had with
[11] Paul King?

na Al Yes.

pna Qs Your conversation —

14} At Parts of the letter would be doing that, yes.

rs; Qi As Iunderstand it, the whole of this letter is

116] recording your conversation with Paul King?

81 those circumstances?

M  A: 1 am saying that is what Paul King said.

B  Q: You go on to say;

g "It was also interesting to hear that, at some

[i01 stage, it could have applications in other Shell

{11] markets. The exercise has therefore been well

(12) worthwhile, even if there are no immediate dividends and
[1a] we do seem to have won a great consolation prize,"

4]  You were referring there to Star Trek?

s A: Yes.

1ne]  Q: You have the option on page 447, We have discussed the
[17] option together. It is your evidence, is it, to my Lord

un A Yes.
e Qu It goes on to say: (18] that you agreed an option to that effect with Paul King?
' (19 "It is nice 10 know they want to keep our (el A Yes.
0] muitibrand loyalty scheme in the locker." oy G: Okay, Mr Sotherton, I am going to put it to you
211  You are referring to senior management there? 211 squarely; these two letters were not written in 1990,
22 A Yes. [2g were they?
" 23 Gt What was the source of your information to the effect 1231 At Yes, they were.
[24] that that was the intention of senior management? 24 Q: Thesc two letters were written at a point in time after
5] A: Paul King. 125 the Shell Smart Scheme had rolled out, were they not?
Pags 53 Page 55
M Q: Who did you understand senior management to be? 11 A: No.
21 A Whoever Paul King's senior management was, 71 - Q: And, Mr Sotherton, the letter of 24th july 1990 that we
B Q: Did you not know? [91 have just had open with the option in it was written
¥l A: Notsure of the change of command, if you like, na, ] after the other letter of 24th july — whenever that was
B  Q: Right So do we actually arrive at this position; you [§] written — was it not?

6] have communicated to Sainsburys orally a revolutionary
71 concept which they are not interested in going forward
] with and which Shell is not interested in going forward
8 with?

(o A: Yes, so it transpires.

(11 Q¢ So you knew at the time?

g A: Yes.

13 Q: It does not transpire; you knew at the time?

14 A: Yes,

115 Qi Can you explain to my Lord why it was thought

(16 appropriate to write a letter reinforcing this at that
(17 timc?

18]  A: Becauselthinkwewerekeento keep the momentumand
9] the interest going,

op  Q: What interest?

1] At The interest of - well, both the parties here;

[22] Sainsburys and Paul King,
[231 Qi What interest?

] A: No.
{1 Q: That explains why, does it not, that the letter of
[E 24th July 1590 to Paul King seems to have slipped yours
51 and Mr Donovan's recollection in the letter before
(10] action in April 19977
11 A: Sorry, could you repeat that?
(123 Qi In the letter before action of April 1997 there is no
13] reference to this letter of 24th July 1990 to King?
4] A: Ido not know.
115 Q¢ You say you do not know. Do you want me to show you
[16] that letter again?

1177 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Take it fromn Mr Hobbs that this letter
(18] is not referred to in the 1997 letter before action.

ns  A: Right

ro] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Just assume that is true.

21 A: Yes.

227 MR HOBBES: Imay notrememberyour cxactwords, butIthink

[23] you gave evidence in answer to questions from me that

24  A: Aninterest that it might be usabie in the future. {24 you found that surprising?

IgSI _Q: No immediate interest for the foresceable future? 25]  A: That it was not found?
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M) . Qi That it was not mentioned.

7w A Yes.

B G: I putit to you that the reason it was not mentioned in
K] that letter before action was because the letter had not

B been written at that point in time?

B Ai Well, it was written at that point in time.

M @t In which casc I want you to tell my Lord how it is that
) both you and John Donovan had no recollection of it

18 around and about the time of the letter before action in
1q April 19977

{111  A: Iam sorry, you will have to -

a1 Q: How is that this surprising omission occurred in

(i3] cirenmstances where you yourself had written the letter
[t4] that is not referred to?

(151 A: I have never held the files. Only those odd files that
148 1 had. I did not have the information,

M Qi You negotiated, according to your evidence, the relevant
[18] option?

pe At Yes.
20  Q: Why was it that, when you saw the text of the April 1997

)

{21] letter, you made no mention of that fact to Donovan and

1221 suggcested that he refer to it in the letter?

{11 moving and fashion-conscicus? In other words, things

127 which are marketable now may not be marketable in two

[ years'time?

¥ A: Yes, that is possible.

B MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I have alittle bit of problem with this
g1 letter of 24th July on page 446. According to this, the

M expanded proposal was an innovative leap forward. Is

(@ that what you thought at the time?

B A Yes.
¢ MR JUSTICE LADDIE: It was revolutionary; is that what you
111] thought at the time?
111 A Yes.
(g MR JUSTICE LADDIE: It would put Shell miles ahead; was that

4] ‘what you thought at the time?

s A: Yes.

1r61 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: if all of those were true, it would be
(17 very valuable; correct?

8 A Yes.

rg MR JUSTICE LADDIE: But, of course, if it was not exploited,
{20 a time could came along when samebody else thought of a
121] similar or better scheme for themselves, yes?

221 At Thatis possible, yes.

[22] "yes" to both.Was it you alone, or you and
231 Mr Donovan?
24  A: Myself and John Donovan.
@5 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I see. Is this ficld one which is fast
T e Page 58

“w2g A Sorry, I am getting a little bit confused about what it 23 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: You voluntcered to Mr Hobbs a few
[24] is you are saying at the moment, [24] minutes ago that the option that you gave to Shell was
125]  Q: There is a letter in April 1997 which makes no mention 5] without limit of time?
Page 57 Page 59
11 of the letter we have open here at 4467 ) Ai Yes,
@ A: Yes. iz MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Dolunderstand your evidence to be that
]  Q: The letter at 446 contains an option that you [3 you gave, without limit of time, an option at no charge
¥l ncgotiated? g1 to Shell for something which was a revolutionary leap
B Ar Yes. (51 forward and which would put Shell miles ahead of their
g Gt You proofread the letter in April 19977 is] competitors? So, for nothing and without limit of time,
71 A: Yes. 7 you gave to Shell something which was very valuable and
® Qi Why did it not occur to you that it was appropriate to @ which they had no interest in at the time? Is that your
57 incntion the existence of an option in that letter? 8} evidence? .
1o A: I do not recall. I do not know. na  Ac Yes.
(11 Qi Do you find your own failure to notice that the option 1111 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I sec.
[17] was not menticned odd? {27 MRHOBBS: I have no further questions, my Lord.
{131 A: No. (ta]  Re-examination by MR COX
(4] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Sotherton, you hadaresponsibility (4] MR COX: Mr Sotherton, to deal with his Lordship’s point
[15] to Don Marketing when negotiating with Sheil or other (15) first, could you turn in file E1 ~ so we can answer
116] third parties to secure good deals for Don Marketing? 118 his Lordship as quickly as we can - to a few
nn o Ac Yes. 117] pages before the documents that you have just been
(8 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Wercyou on the salesside,orwereboth (18] shown. Particularly a letter in May; page 429, pleasc.
16 you and Mr Donovan on the sales side? i18] Do you have 4297 E1/429. What I want to do with you,
2oy A: Yes. 0] Mr Sotherton, is give you the time to look at the
21 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Either onc or the other. It cannot be  * |121] documents and put it together in your mind. Do you

122] understand?
23 A: Yes,
4  Q: This is not a memory test, as far as we can make it.

izsi You must have the documents to be able to look at. Take
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[ your time, if you would like time to read it.This isa

@ letter dated 17th July from Mr Donovan. I want you to

@ read it over to yourself and particularly the bottom

u) paragraph of page 429 and the top. It talks about the

[ relationship of trust between Shell and Don Marketing.

©  A: Yes, I have read that part.

M Q: Did you read the top of page 430 as well?

@  A: Yes Idid.

B Qi Was it anything odd or unusual, to your mind, that
(16) Mr Donovan and the company should have been prepared to
(11] give the right to Shell to first cail on the idea?
1121 At Not at all, Nothing unusual at all.
(14 Qi And without any limitation, in the sense of no period of
(4] time actually affixed to it?

fi5]  Ar No.
16 Q: Why isit not surprising, bearing in mind what you know
p7 of the relationship?
A: Because that was the ongoing refationship that we had
(1g] with Shell.
0]  Q: Yes.I'want to come to these letters, if I may, because
21 I 'want you to understand as fully as you can what is
22 being suggested. It has not actually been suggested
23] yet, but I want you to take in your hand - we will have
{24] to assume that it is implied - do you sce the document
28] in the same file at 450A7 ‘
Page 61

(1] with Andrew Lazenby, does it?

@2 At Yes.

@  Q: 24/11/92 That records the date of the mecting and the
@] date of the note?

B A: Yes.

@ @: "Shell will negotiate royalty arrangements et cetera
7} with us if they progress scheme ..."

®  What is the next word?

©  A: "..atfuture date.”

fo  Q: "At future date.” And the scheme referred to, which
[11] scheme was that?

pz2  A: The multibrand loyalty scheme.

(13 Q@ The onc contained in this letter?

4] A Yes.

ps Qi "Don could work with Shell Intcrnationally to exploit

(18] overseas. Copy of this letter left with AL."

p7 Is that a true note, as you recorded it at the
18] time, of what occurred?

fg  A: Yes,it is a note left for John Donovan.

g0l Qi When you put the note on page 450A;

21 Relates to proposal presented to Paul King in
22) November 1989."

123] Do you sce that?
24 A Yes.
g5 Qi That was put there for what purpose? Can you recall?

Page 63

1] At Yes.

7] Qi And 450B?

B A: Yes.

¥l  Q: You have given evidence already that both of the

(5] handwritten notes on that letter are your writing;

] correct?

m A Yes.

|  Q: I'want you to understand exactly what it is that

to1 Mr Hobbs is implying and putting to you and the whole
{10) bearing of the cross-examination that has just been
{111 concluded with you from Friday into today. Those notes
{1z} that you have put down there are a complete fabrication
113 in the sense that they were not put there on the
{4 24th, but you have deliberately, in order to fabricate
'8 evidence, to hoodwink his Lordship, put those down after
6] March 1997. Do you understand?

171 A: Tunderstand.
18 Qi Is that true?
18] At No,itis not true.

200 Qi Youhaveappended those notesto help John Donovan after
(211 March 1997; is that true?

227 A No,itis not.

[23) Qi When did you make those notes?

(1 A: Ithink as 2 reminder to myself for that presentation.
@ @ Yes.Did you have the document we have been calling
B} Concept Four, the initial written document that was put
@] to Paul King in front of you at the time? Can you
5] remember?
1]  A: I cannot recall.
M Q: You see, that document is dated 23rd October.The
g document that Concept Four is in.
B  A: Right '
(ie] Qi Have a look at it just for a moment, It is in the same
{11] bundle at page 331.You have told us these notes were
(171 made, cither during the meeting ~ certainly the one on
113) 4508 - or on the train on the way home. Is that right?
4  A; Yes.

ps] Q: 331 is the initial proposal, in writing at lcast, put

18] forward to Mr King in 1989. Do you have that?

nn Ar Yes.

18] Qi Do you have the top sheet; 23rd October 19897

e At Yes.

zal Qi Doesit follow that, when youmade the note at 4504, you

" 11241 had or did not have the document in front of you?

22]  A: I think we probably would have had it with us,

231 Q: You think you probably would?
124  A: On 24th November 1992, _ 24 A: Yes.
28 _ Qi So,when it says "mecting with AL" that means mceting s Qi Why wouldyou put November rather than October then?
T Page 62 Page 64
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1i1.  A: I do not know now.
14 Q: All right. What I want to make certain you are

[ understand is that the accusation against you is that

K] You are conspiring to pervert the course of justice

6] today by fabricating notes on a document; pretending

i that they happened in 1992 when in fact they never did.
71 Do you understand?

@  A: Yes,Iunderstand.

@  Q: Ijust want to hear your answer one more time about it
{10 please; is that true or not?
(111 At Thatis true.

121 Qi Itis true you fabricated ~

(18] At Sorry, no, it is not true.

(41 Qi Let us have a look at the letter itself because ~
(151 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Cox how long are you going to be?
ne  Ifitis going to take a bit of time ...

n71 MR COX: I wonder whether we could break now, if
(18} your Lordship pleases.

f191 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Yes.

o] (1.00 pm)

(21] (Luncheon adjournment)

22 (2.00 pm)

23] MR COX: I was dealing with you just before the

[24] adjournment, with the understanding that I want you to
(5] have fully what is being put to you, do you follow that,
Page 65

{1} on Friday to Mr Hobbs you said you could not actually
[a] remember having read this letter, but that you presumed
3 that you would have done so and proof read it. 1 want
¥ 1o ask you - just have a quick look at its pages -

5} whether or not you can actually remeraber ever having
(6] seen this letter before Mr Hobbs showed it to you on

7 Friday?

@  As Idon’t have a clear memory.

1 Q: No.Itis said, you sce, that in that letter, and a lot
[10) of crossexamination was conducted of you on the
(1] assumption that you have seen it, there is missing,
(12) although it refers on page 2 at paragraph 5 to the
(19 Ietter to Sainsbury dated 24th July, page 2, paragraph
(14] 5, that relates to our page 446. Do you see?

18] A: Yes.

16t Qi In the file open in front of you?

111 A: Yes, sorry, which?

(18] Qi 446 in the big file that you have open. Sorry, 449 in

I'9) the big file you have open in front of you?
o) A:r Yes.
21 Qi So that Ietter is referred to in Mr Donovan's March
[22) letter, do you see?
9] A Yes.
24  G: But the one at 446 is not, the one that went with it on
125] the same day to Mr King. It is not mentioned in that
Page 67

(1} that the notes on the letter at 450A and B have been put
(7] on by you fraudulently and dishonestly - this is the
18] suggestion - after March 1997, or sometime around that
#) period, to assist a false claitn. Now, is that correct?
51  A: No,itis not correct,
5] Q: Would you do such a thing to support Mr Donovan?
M A: Certainly not.
B  Q: Coming to the letters themselves if you would with me,
18} because what is being put forward is that on an analysis
{10 of some documents one can conclude or infer that these
[11) letters were not written at the time, I want to explore
¢z that with you, First I want to ask you this; do you
113] actually remember reading that March 1997 letter before
{14} action that you were shown on Friday? Do you remember
(5] the one with the different points? Do you remember that
[16) letter?
1 A: Yes, I recall that.
('8 Q¢ Do you remember going through it on Friday with
(81 Mr Hobbs, him taking you through it?
[y A: Yes.
211 Q: I'will take you to it because I do not want to make that
(22} mistake. It is in bundle X. Do you have a black bundle
{23 X7

i1] letter, do you see?

@ At Yes.

B Q: Now,doyou know how it came about that the letter was
#] omitted from that list of letters that Mr Donovan sent

5 out?

] A: No,Ido not.

1 Q: Butare you able to tell his Lordship that the letter on

1B page 446, going back to 446, as far as you are

19 concerned, was that a letter written on 24th July 19907

{10 A: Yes,
111 Qt How are you able to say that?
02]  A: Because it has my signature on it.

ne]  Q: Help me with this. Do you recall the background

{14] discussions that led to it?

{15 Ai Yes, some of them.

68  Q: I'want to come to those, please, if I may, and sec if we
[17) can help you with some of the documents. Take out file

s E1?

11 At Yes, I have that.

o]  Q: Go backa little bit in time to the 14th May at page
121} 414. Perhaps we can go back a little even before then,

[22) to page 384.You have told his Lordship that there were

(23] ongoing discussions with Paul King between October 1989

241 A: Yes. 124 and July 1990. Do you recall?

B8] @t You should find it at tab one. When you gave cvidence @5 A; Yes,
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11 - Q: Ido not want to take you through all of them but I want
@ 1o see if they jog any memories. If you can take up E1,
[ you will sec on 14th May there is a letter to Mr Paul
¥ King?
51 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Page?
@ MR COX: Page 414, my Lord. Do you have that?
M A: Yes, | have.
@ Qi Now this,if you just quietly read it, skim it over to
18] yourself, you will sec it is about a Sherlock Holmes
110] game.
1] Ar Yes. .
(121  Q: Have a look at it. (Pause.) Do you remember the
13 Sherlock Holmes game?
(4] Ai Not very well at all.
{151 Q; All right. 14th May, Sherdock Holmes, and you cannot
{16] help me with a recollection about that?
71 A: Not really. Nothing became of it.
Qt Can you go back to 381, 19th March 1990Q.Again, a
19 letter to Mr King about Project Harbour. Do you
2o} remember what Project Harbour was? See if the content
[21] jogs your memory.

A: Project Harbour would probably be the Make Merry
' 23 proposal, ,
4] Qi Canyou remember now, Mr Sotherton, what it was?

25  A: From the content of the letter it suggests that that is
Page 69

1 A: Yes.
7 Q: Again, do you have any recollection, other than the
@3 letter, of having done that?
¥ A: No.
51 Qi So,docs it come to this really, in relation to all of
i§] your evidence; that in order for you to be able to give
[ it, not unsurprisingly, perhaps not surprisingly, 9
Bl years ago, you need the documents in front of you?
i A: I need memory joggers, yes.
f1e]  Q: Ifyou have a document that records something that you
111} have done, it either jogs your memory or you are
(12 satisfied that that is what you did?
(131 At Correct.
f4] Q¢ Let us go on in time and see if we can attract any
15 more. On page 420, there is a letter to Mr Donovan from
(¢6] Mr Horley, 20th Junc 1990;
1171 '"Dear Mr Donovan, your letter dated 31st May to
17 Mr Sturrock was passcd to me as Advertising and
[181 Marketing Manager. Given the information in your
1201 letter, it is clearly very difficult to make an
[21] appropriate comment, but if you would like to send me
[22] the written presentations you refer to I will of course
[23] give it my consideration”.
{24 Do you see that?
s A: Yes.
Page 71

{1} what it was,
1 Q: Youmay bec wrong about that. That is why I am asking
8 you. Can you remember now, leaving aside the content of
] the letter, what it was, Project Harbour?
Bl At No,Ican’t recall at the moment.
g Qi Let us move on then. 30th May 1990.You have already
[ said you cannot remember much about Sherlock Holmes.
8 That was 417 where Mr Carson wrote back to Mr Donovan
ts) about the Sherlock Holmes games proposal. Again, do you
[10] remember much about that?
11 At I remember it happening at the time in the
[12) correspondence.
13 @ Do you remember a request? If you have a look at page
[#] 419, this appears to have been a letter at least PP'd on
(15} your behalf to Mr Carson on 31 May, See if that jogs
[16] your memory. (Pause.)

171 A: Yes, that helps me to recall that happened.
18 Qt Right, what happened there?
i A: I had been asked to - obviously the content of the

{za letter, I had been asked to respond to Stuart Carson

tz11 providing those terms and conditions which he had

{22 requested.

[231 Qi If you look at the page before you will see Mr Carson

[24} requesting the terms and conditions. This is the 30th

{251 and 31st May?

= Page 70

(11 Qi So again Sainsbury first contact. Help me about
{2 Sainsbury. Were they regarded as being a uscful
i3] potential person to get involved in promotion with?

¥l  Ai Most certainly, yes.
51 Qi How were they regarded in that context?
61  A: Highly, and an up-market company.
71 Q: Did Shell have any interest in Sainsbury?
@ A:r Yes. i
157 Qt What intercst was that?
101 A: Thatif ever they were to be linked with sales

(11} promotions of ancther company with 2 supermarket brand,
[12] that Sainsbury would be the ideal one.

(131 Qi Is it right to observe that Sainsbury was regarded in
[14] the industry as something of a prize?

5]  A: You could say that.

(16] Qi Well, it has been said. It has been said in fact - 1

18] by one of the witnesses for Shell in this case.

(191 Sainsbury, when they got back to Mr Donovan on 20th

[20] June, was that something unexpected or expected, that

{211 they would bother to reply?

221  A:i Unexpected ] think.
(23] Q: Why?
24)  A: They had not been known to conduct or entertain

{25 promotional games previously. This was the first time
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7] that I think we had got any response from them at all.

)  Q: In previous years had some response been sought from
1@ Sainsbury by Don Marketing?

¥l A; I think so. It would have been part of a standard mail

m shot,

©  Q Butonthisoccasion the compamy actually gotan answer?
A Yes
® Qi Asking to be further informed?
g  A: Yes,
pop Qi If we turn the page, we sce a letter, again with your

1] reference as well as Mr Donovan's at the top, to

112t Mr Carson;

{133 "Dear Stuart, Sainsbury have never before

114] expressed the slightest interest in promotional games.
151 1 was therefore very surprised to receive a letter this

[16] morning from Brian Horley, their Advertising and

7] Marketing Manager, taking us up on an offer to make a
ng presentation. I thought it might be worthwhile taking
its] advantage of the opportunity to mention the multibrand
f20] game conkept, hence my call to you this morning

[21] requesting permission to do so.1 will make it clear to

[221 Sainsbury that the approach in regard to the mltibrand

© 23] games is at our instigation and purely to explore the

124} possibility of joint promotional activity between Shell
(2] and Sainsbury without any commitment from either party”.

11 Qi Let us have a leok, if we may, at this. Mr Horley is
{2 written to about Disneytime?

@t MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Which one are you on now?

g MR COX: 422, my Lord. Mr Horley is written to about
i5] Disneytime, but at the bottom paragraph on 422;

i  "Twould also like to take this opportunity to ask

171 if Sainsbury might be interested in entering into

] exploratory discussions regarding a joint promotional
191 game next year with Shell UK Oil. As you may be aware,
110} we have supplied Shell with all of their promotional

1111 games during the last decade and this approach is made
11z with their knowledge and appro

131 Then the basic idea is set out.That is really

[14] the Make Moncy MegaMatch development, is it not, of Make

115] Money?
e Ai Yes.
17 Gt "The left-hand half note obtained at a Shell station

(8] might iatch up with the right-hand half note received at
g the Sainsbury store."Then there is a suggestion about

(20 being subject to agreement. Disncy could not be run

[21] because there is a tie up between Walt Disneyand a

[22) rival gasolinc company. Mcntion about some new

[23] concepts, and then;

2]  "To be frank I was surprised to receive your

{25 response to my letter because Sainsbury have not been

Page 73 Page 75
i1t Do you see that? il receptive in the past to even considering promoticnal
= A: Yes, [ games", -
B Qi Now,thatis on 25th Junc 19907 @  Is that something that accords with your
B A: Yes. K} understanding of things at that titne?
B Qi Again, Mr Donovan dealing with this? m At Yes
i A Yes. 6  Q: "However, I hope the concepts mentioned above do
m @ Asking permission to put forward the multibrand game (7] demonstrate that it is possible for Sainsbury to benefit
[#] concept? B from the proven appeal (not bingo) which would be
| A: Yes. i8] incompatible with Sainsbury’s image".

o Qi On10th July 1990, there has beensome responsesbecause
[11] it is again a letter from Mr Donovan, this ene is -1

112 ought to ask you about this, The Ietter before

(13 Mr Donovan, there is a photocopy with a signature on.

114] The next copy has no signature at 423, When you gave

I15] your cvidence before you thought that that might be

(18] because the photocopy was taken in one case after he had

1171 signed and in another case before?

(e We can leave the next letters and go to 13th

{1 July. :

121 Now, you mentioned in your evidence before that

113] this time there were some other projects ongoing,

4] promotions?.

g A Yes.

16 Qi If you look at the letter of 13th July, page 425,

117} Mr Donovan has written on the 10th July at 422 about the

per  A; Yes, 11e] MegaMatch. We have just looked at that?

18]  Q; Simple as that? e A: Yes

[ro]  A: Yes. 201  Q: On the 13th he writes to Mr Carson, as you will see,

217 Qi And that happens, if one looks at the papers, quite 121} about Star Trek. Does that ring a belf with you?

[22] consistently or inconsistendy throughout all the files Rz A; Yes.

(28} we have. Is that something that would accord with your 21 Q: Doyou remember the StarTrek promotion?

24] recollection? 24 A: Yes. :

[35} Az That would be normal, 25 Q: What do you remember about it? Not about its detail but
Page 74 Page 76
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(11 about what happened to it? 11 Written many articles about the pitfalls of promotional
@  A: In what respect? Iz games. Do you sce that. Following the letter through
@ O Well, did it run? 8] with me, are you?
¥ A:i Yes, it ran, it certainly did, yes. # A Yes,Ihaveit
B Q: It was a game? 5 Qi Then the passage you looked at just before the
@  A: Yes,scratch card game. [€] adjournment
7 Qi Have a look at the Jetter; M "We appreciated right from the commencement of cur
@  "Dear Stuart, I understand we may still be in time E] association with Shell that you need to be open to game

{9 for just one last concept option for the autumn slot”.
(g Then itis set out;
{11 "As you can see from the visual, Star Trek The
(2] Game ... highly topical”, and then I will not go through
131 every detail but it is set out, the reasons why the Star
t+4] Trek game should be gone forward with. Do you see that?

nst  A: Yes.
1161 Q: At the last paragraph on 427;
71 "We are therefore confident that the proposed

18] concept would be the logical choice to maintain Shell's

' (18] reputation for innovative, memorable pramotional games,

20] not the run of the mill variety mounted in the past by
{21] rival brands".
1221 Do you see that?
23] A Yes.
24 Qi If we turn the pages, 17th July, just 4 days later,
[2s] another letter at page 429, another letter from
Page 77

4] Mr Donovan:
2]  "Dear Stuart, 25 you scem to be close to making a
11 decision on the choice of 2 game specialist, perhaps it
K] might be appropriate to remind you of some of the points
B we made about our services and experience during our
6] meeting.” Again, I don’t know whether you have any
{7 independent recollection of it, but it appears that
® there had been a meeting at least between Mr Donovan and
i8] Mr Carson, scmetime between 13th and 17th July.
{im MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I think he docs not know that is a
(1] question.

{127 MR COX: Is that right?

(13 A: Yes, sorry, yes.

14 Qi There appears to have been a meeting?

1s; A: Yes.

te Qi Letusgo on because we will see that Mr Donovan here is

(171 urging his case for Star Trek?

ne A: Yes.

[19 Qe " for two decades, specialised in supplying gamcs to

[20; the brewery, 50 games in the last 10 years, and morc

[21] relevantly to petral retailers.”

221  Some words about experience. "Since autumn 83 we

1231 have worked exclusively for Shell supplying seven

(2¢] national promotions, 4 in UK, 3 overseas, and when

{251 disaster games occur companies seck our advice”,

=5 w Page 78

9 concepts proposed from any source. However, Shell was
{10] 50 pleased with our work on the Shell Make Money game
{11] that it was agreed on an informal basis that if you
[12) accepted any ideas proposed by third parties you would
[13] use our services to plan and manage the game. This
{14] enzbled you to take advantage of our expertise and
115] growing knowledge of Shell’s marketing operation. We
(18] were also trusted with your confidential requirements in
{171 regard to sccding major prizes."
(18]  Seeding major prizes means what, could you cxplain
[ to us?
6 A: That means inserting randomly anywhere amongst the
[21] printed game pieccs the prices of high value.
ezl Q¢ So it is a sensitive secure job?
23] A Very much so.
24 Qi Would the company, your company, Mr Donovan’s carnpany
- do
(5] that on behalf of Shell in the promotional games?
Page 79

f] At Every time.

7 Q: "This arrangement proved to be satisfactory to both
131 parties. Shell bad the first option on any concept we

¥ devised and were also completely open to ideas submitted
8 fram other sources. We had an incentive to remain loyal

161 to Shell.

7l "We were pleased that under these circumstances of

[l open competition thre€ out of the four games run by

@ Shell during the mid-80s were concepts originated by Don
tial Marketing and accepted by Sheil purely on their merit,"

(1]  Some words about creative ability and some

{12 reminders about the disaster with the competitor’s game

113] Noughts and Crosscs. T trust these important factors

(4] will be borne in mind when you make your choice of games
1i5] specialist. With regards to the Star Trek game, I would

118] like to stress that this visual was our first stab”, and

[17] 2 suggestion about being willing to be flexibie in

(18] relation to fees. Do you see that?

(st A: Yes. )
200 Qi This Star Trek promotion, who dealt with that in Don

f21] Marketing?

221  A: John Donovan in the main,

23]  Q: Were you involved with dealing with that in any

[24] significant sense at all?

125 A: Yes, 1 was.
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1. Qi How?

@  A: In the production of the games variations, these are the
t3] printed combinations of symbols, and in the prize fund

# structuring and in the printing of all of the gamne

[E piecces, at a supervisory level, and inserting the major

[sl prices,

M Q: I'want to ask you this. Star Trek, we know - and I do

18] not think it is disputed - that Mr Donovan’s original

el company had been folded up in about 1986¢

no A Yes.

1] Qi But restarted in 19897

nzy A: Yes.

na Qi Whywasitthatyouunderstood that MrDonovan was going

114] to restart?
(15  A: Because there was potential business coming from Shell,
pg) from the continued relationship with Shell.

tin Q: So the refationship with Shell, as it were, restarted?
1e] A Yes.
ne - Q: StarTrck was the first piece of actual business that

ey Shell had zccepted, was it not?

211 A: Yes.
2z Q: Soitwas an imporiant event?
© s} Ar Very much so.
241 Qi I mean by that since the company had restarted?
@5 At Yes.

)

Page B1

{11 and you are putting it together, is it a fairly intense

12 activity?

gl A; Yes, very much so.

#  Q: So Mr Donovan, focusing as he says on the 18th July,on
51 discussions to see what is going to be run by the BBC

6] and the licensing agency continues;

Fi  "He may be willing to bend the rules to enable us

@ to give you some definite information, Possibility they

19 may now launch the ncw series Star Trek - The Next

(i0] Generation this autumn, You may be able to use the

[11) original characters for the instant win game and the new
1] ones for the collector game."

i3] I have not gone into the details but the mechanics

(4] Tor the Star Trek, the issues, all of these things had

45} been worked on by whom?

116]  A: John Donovan and myself.

171 @ And they had been worked up, had they?

ney As Yes.

re Qi "Aside from the BBC's pians, a good deal of publicity

{200 has been generated by the Star Trek battle berween the
121} two satellite TV companies®, and some more words about
{2z} that, and really the next page:

9 “May be interested to learn than we carried out

4] our own comparative market research using unbranded

@5 story boards for Star Trek Disneytime and three other
Page B3

111 @ Who dealt with the negotiations with Shell in relation
(@ to Star Trek, as far as you recollect?
@ A: John Donovan.
Kl  Q: Have alook at page 431, on the 18th July;
5] "Dear Stuart”, and then some words about the
16 licensing agency unable to get information from the BBC
71 about plans for airing Star Trek movies, One of the
(8] things that matters when you are running a promotion is
81 to sec whether the game catches same particular craze or
1o} fashion at the moment?
1] A: Yes,itis topical.
122 G And this Jetter addresses that, about whether or not the
113 BBC are going to run StarTrek programmes. Is that
4] right?
sl At Yes.
e Q: "We are not sure of the importance of this issue”, that
[17] is to say the BBC’s policy to issue information, "as the
(3] audience for the first Star Trek movie was built up
1191 solely from the success of the original 79 episodes.
261 "Sarah Harman of TEN hopes to speak later today to
121 Nick Chapman, the MD of BBC Enterpriscs”.
7 All of this toing and froing relating to Star Trck
23] ‘would have been done by whom?
241 A: John Donovan.
£5 Qi Right When a promotion is on the brink of acceptance
w Page 82

1] concepts on Saturday”.

B Do you see thar?
@ A: Yes,
Kl Qi Whar would you do if you wanted to test a game? What

E does it refer to there "We carried it out on Saturday”,

[ third paragraph, 4327

71 A: Thatwould be market research, probably goinginto the
@ streets and secking opinions from the public.

M  Q: And you would have a sort of survey of what ~

pno A Yes, we would send people out to do that,
(111 Qi In relation to the games?
pnz As Yes.

i3]  Q; Continuing with that letter "Aware there were numerous
(] devoted Star Trek fanatics, Trekkies, pleased that our

[15] expectation of popularity confirmed. The research only

(18] involved z small sampling. We have no expertise in

(17 conducting market research, We would recommend if there
118} were two very strong contenders perhaps it would be

18] possible to arrange for impartial market research to be

[20] carricd out urgently this weekend to determine which

[R1] should be more popular. If this is not practical,

{zz] perhaps you may be able to carry out some internal

{231 research among Shell employces. Confidentiality is not

[24) quite as important as it formerly was, because we have

125] reason to believe your main competitor has, almost
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1 certainly, already been inadvertently tipped off.

£ "Even though the Star Trek series has not been

i3} aired on TV, interesting to note 10 and a half miition

W] viewers for a movic shown just a few weeks ago”,

B Then, over the page;

#5)  "Even if the BBC cannot be persuaded ...

{7 reasonable to speculate they will take advantage of the

[E] major promotion. Telephone today as soon as I have some
@ further news”,

o] Do you see that?
i At Yes.
#21 Qi That is 18th July. Over the page, you will see a second

{13] letter on the same day sent by fax?

14 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Cox,1do notunderstand MrHobbsor
(18] his client to be disputing that Mr Donovan was deeply

116 concerned with the $tar Trek project. I am concerned

(171 however as to where this re-examination is going. Is it

119 just to that issue of what was involved in that? I do

e not understand there to be a dispute between the

[20] parties,

=1 MR COX: I hope not. What I submit is that it is rather
(22 inextricable from this rather extraordinary and wholly
(23] unnotified attack that has been made upon the daimant
[24) and Mr Sothertony’s integrity. They are being suggested

[75 and it is a very grave allegation.
Page 85

111 MR COX: I hope not to take too long but [ do feel the

12 allegations made need to be answered as far as

B Mr Sotherton can recall. I will not take very long. On

¥l the 18th july a second letter, 434. Do you sce that?

B A: Yes

] @ Further information about this Star Trek that is on the
7] brink apparently of being accepted. Over the page at

#) 435 a third fax, all on the 18th July, do you sce that?

@ A; Yes,
(o] Q¢ With some details from Paramount, If we turn past those
{11] We get to the 20th July at 439;
[12] "You indicated during our telephone conversation

113 yesterday that you wished to discuss our fees regarding
14} the above project during today's meeting™, 20th July.
15 "You have of course given a rough indication", and the
1:61 letter then deals with fees and says;

(171 "As we recognise it would give us a negotiating

1181 lever if Shell were to proceed further without the fees
119] being agreed to their satisfaction, we are happy to

20] undertake, relying on the fact that Shell have always
23] treated us fairly in the past, that we will accept your
127] decision on the fees to be charged "

23] Does that reflect the nature of the rciationship

[24] that you had with Shell at that time as you understood

25 i?
Page 87

111 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Of course.
MR COX: Of the most wholesale and astonishing fraud,
[ including the creation of evidence for a court. Now —
¥ MR JUSTICE LADDIE; 1t is either an astonishing accusation
[8 ot it is an astonishing fraud, one or other of them. It
18] is certainly astonishing one way or the other.
7 MR COX; It would be both, I think, but my Lord the point
1 is that -
© MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Obviously you need to - ail I am
0] trying to do ~ I do not want to waste anybody's costs
1) that is all, and insofar as there is a - you are
1] putting it to this witness that Mr Donovan was deeply
113 concerned with running the Star Trek, I thought that was
4] a common currency between the parties, that he was
(5] deeply concerned in running Star Trek.
(6]  MB COX; My Lord, I must say that I am grateful for your
117 Lordship’s indication, because 1 had not understood that
18] anything was accepted.
e MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Is that not the position? Thank you.
e MR COX: I am grateful, but it is nevertheless from the
121} point of view of an examination of the accuracy of these
i22) allegations important that he shouid be given the time
123 tolook through the documents one by one and to sce
t=4] whether he can -~
iz MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Take your course, Mr Cox.
. Page 86

11 A: Very much so, yes.
@ Qi Youwere willing to accept what they thought was fair on
{3 fee?

#  A: Yes
51 Qi Of course, particularly if you could get this business?
151  A: Yes.

1 Gk "This does not mean to say that we will not argue our
B] <ase most strenuously, as we have done in the past, but

ig] at this time we feel it is more important to move ahead

i1¢] with the other elements which need to be tackled

1) urgently if the promotion is to be launched by the

[19] target date”.

1131 Now, that is 20th July. Who in the meantime was

(141 dealing with the contact with Sainsbury?

B8 Ar Myself,

18] Q: Right.Was that or was it not because Mr Donovan was
{17] intensively concerned with Star Trek?

fa  A: Very,yes.

1191  Q: And getting this first piece of business since the

{20) company had restarted?

1] A Yes.

22 Qs Let us turn the page to 443, if you would. Thercisa
(23] fax on 23rd July at 441.That is from Mr Carson to John

[241 Donovan about a print buyer who wanted to start a tender

i25] process;
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(1 'Thave already advised ... if more to provide ...

1% please advise when possible™

@ A: Iam not sure I have the right page.

]  Q: That was 441.There is a fax from Mr Carson,

@Bl handwritten fax?

6] A: Yes, I have that.

1 G: Wanting to get to Mr Donovan, and a handwritten note
&) asking for 2 written specification of the Board?

18] A: Yes.
po] Qi If we turn the page to 443 there is a letter on 23rd
[11] July 1990 to the licensing - this is the Star Trek

(12 licensing company, TEN Licensing:

(13 “Apologies for cancelling the meeting on Friday.

i} 1 had to remain at Shell House to assist in the

15} preparation of a presentation which took late until the
(g} afternoon”,

(177 Did you attend that presentation?
e Ar Ido notthink I did.
‘(@ Qi StarTrek being dealt with by Mr Donovan?
2o A Yes.
21 Q: "Tam pleased to formally confirm that Shejt are

1221 proceeding with the project and have requested that the

23 licensing agreement be completed if at all possible by
24 thisThursday afterncon".
zs]  Then some further discussion about - this is to
Page 89

(1 Qi Now,during that discussion did you talk to Mr Horley
2] about the MegaMatch game?

B A Yes.

¥l Q: In the course of that discussion did you mention

15) anything clse, other than the MegaMatch game?

€ A: Only expanding around that.
m @t To go to what?
B A: Oh, to the larger scheme.
@ @ Now,why did you mention that?
fe]  A: Because I felt it would be of interest.

r1]  Q: Right. When you had had your conversations with
12] Mr Horley, did you report or mention anything to
{3 Mr Donovan?
141 Ar Yes.
151 Q: Right.As you can recollect it, if you go to page 446,
6] how did you ~ what impression did you get when you had
1171 spoken to Mr Horley about the MegaMatch game and the
(18] multibrand loyalty concept?
;i8]  A: That there was an interest, that he was not going to
1201 turn it down flat without seeing or hearing some more,
211  @Q: Right. What happened when you had got that initial
2z] nibble from Sainsbury, what happened next, as you
(23] recall? )
124  A: Theresponsesasyou seethatare contained within these
(23] letters.
Page 91

1] Sarah Harman of the licensing, about how it would run.

{z If you turn to 445, on 24th July, so the same day as

3] these letters that we have seen;

#l  ‘John, reference your fax today, re theme music,

5] BBH only just been asked to consider whether radio would
i8] be advantageous and how much we might spend. Details
71 when available should be obtained direct from myself.

@] Cheers, Stuart”.
g1 Do you sce that?
{10 At Yes.
{111 Qi In the meantime you have given evidence that you were
[12] dealing with the contact with Sainsbury, yes?
113 A: Yes, amongst other things, yes.
4 Qi Let us concentrate on the Sainsbury thing. If you go

{15] back to the earlier lctter, the last Sainsbury letter

(161 had been at 421 and 422, 10th July, In the meantime
(17) Shell had bitten on Star Trek, had they not?

(e At Yes.

18]  Q: MrDonovan had asked permission whether he could raise
(20] the MegaMatch game. Do you remember that

[21] correspondence?

127 A: Yes.

23  Q: So it came about that you had a discussion with
[24] Mr Horley on the phone, is that right?

25 . A: Yes.

Page 90

1l Q: Is there any doubt in your mind that the Ietters you
2] have referred to were written at the time?
@  A: No doubt.They were written at the time.
¥ @i Mr Donovan was of course still acutely and intensely
5] absorbed on Star Trek?
© A: Very much so.There was a tight deadline,
7 Qi You were talking with Mr Carson, as we have seen. You
@ were talking to who when you spoke to Shell about this
te] Sainsbury contact?

rie At Paul King,

(111 Qi ‘Was there anything in the conduct of Mr King or

(1z] Mr Carson for that matter, that led you to believe that

(13} Mr King was not a proper person to talk to about these

f14) affairs?

115 At No.
161 Qr Have a look at the letter at 446;
1171 "Thank you for confirming by telephone Sheil's

18] approval of the fetter to Sainsbury which you have now
[19] cleared with Stuart Carson and scnior management”.

20]  Again, when you wrote that and signed it, did you

2¢] understand that Mr King had spoken to Mr Carson and
[22] senior management?

=33 A Yes.

2] Q: Would you have written those lines if you did not

(7] believe them to be correct?
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(11 . A: No, I believed them to be correct.

@  Q "As perinstructions, we have deleted the reference 1o
13 the research findings. The revised version enclesed has

#] been mailed to Sainsbury™.

E  Now, who had the discussion with Mr King about the

te] amendments to the letter to Sainsbury? If you cannot

7] remember, do say so, but have 2 look at the lettes?

® A Yes, I cannot remember exactly but this may well say
tg within the letter.
110) Qi The letter is your letter, signed by you, direct to
(1] Mr King:

(12l  "Thank you for confirming by telephone”.

[19] Again, can you help me, if you had written this

f4] letter thanking him for confirming by telephone, with

{15} whom would have been the telephone conversation do you
(15} think?

71 Ar With myself.

e Qi We will see that what is being suggested, what you say

" 9] in the letter is that the letter gets across the message

{20 you were keen to convey that Shell viewed Sainsbury as
[21} an ideal partner: "They are apparently not considered
[22] to be too down market”.
23 Again, that reflects your understanding of what
24 Shell did think, is that right?
resp At Yes.
Pags 83

{1} before?

] A: Yes,in fact it was an ongoing thing,

B Q: Right, the company had started up again in 1989, had it
@] not?

B At Yes.

] Qi Does it follow from that it was some time in 19897 .
71 At No, we had contact in between times.

B Q: All right. So when you say; "Your brief challenged us

g to devise an innovative leap forward in loyalty

(o) schemes”, you are talking about an event that occurred

11] before Sainsbury’s unexpected interest? ‘

1z At Yes.

13 Qi When you says "We delivered the goods”, are you talking
{14] there about the proposal made to him on the 23rd

115 October, Concept 47 Do you remember Concept 47

pie) At Yes.

7t Qi Or are you talking about something else?

18 Ai No, I think that is what we were referring to.

f1g] Qi Becausc what you say next is "The cxpanded proposal as
[2q) set out in the agreed letter to Sainsbury’s”, i.e the

121} one going with this?

22 A: Yes.

P Qi .. pi’ovidcs the answers to the failings in loyalty

4] schemes.”

rs A Yes.

Paga 95

11 Qi "Sainsbury’s unexpected interest at least spurred us on
[2 to put samc flesh on the initial proposal we discussed
@ with you and Tim some months ago.Your brief challenged
K1 us to devise an innovative leap forward in loyalty
Bl schemes. We delivered the goods. The expanded proposal,
ig] as set out in the agreed letter, provided the answers",
7] 1 want to ask you somcthing about that paragraph.,
igl You have been cross-examined at some length on this.
9 You see the words “your brief challenged us to devise an
[o] innovative leap forward in loyalty schemes. We
[11] delivered the goods",
121 A: Yes.
13 Q: "Sainsbury’s unexpected interest at least spurred us on
{14} 1o put same flesh on the initial proposal we discussed
(18] with you and Tim". So there has been an initial
[1€] proposal?
17 A: Yes.
118l Qi We have seen that, that is October 89, "Your brief
(6] challenged us to devisc an innovative leap forward in
20 loyalty schemes”. What was the brief there referred to?
211 A: It was an open bricef, ongoing, te come up with some
i22] ideas to improve basically loyalty schemes and get away
12a] from the need for bits and picces of paper, that type of
1241 thing, to make them more flexible and universal.
[2s} Qi Right.That had been set for you by Mr King some time
e Page 94

f] Gk "“which ourresearchidentified and" then mentionedabout
2] how the research was invalid. Is that right?

B A: Yes.

¥ MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Just to warn you, Mt Cox, you do of
{5} course appreciate the reduced value of led

(6] re-examination.

m MR COX: My Lord, I do.
® MR JUSTICE LADDIE: That is ali I want to say.
© MR COX: I am also concerned about crossexamination that

[to] has taken place this morning with this witness, without
111] having shown him or taken time to get him to understand
2] the wording of the documents. I am troubled about it.

113 It is an insoluble problem and I do appreciate what your
{141 Lordship says.

(5]  Inany event,if we just complete that letter;

6] "Although we made some suggestions to enhance

1171 Collect & Sclect, a revolutionary concept along the

(1) lines proposed would put Shell miles ahead of the

18] opposition if you decide to return to collection schemes
[20] at a later date”, '

21 Could you just turn back to the Concept 4

i22] document, which is at 331, Do you remember the

123 proposals in that document, if you were just to have a

241 quick look through?

5] At I do recall them all, yes.
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M Qi Whenyousaid:"Althoughwe proposed some suggestions
~[2] to enhance Collect & Select", what were you referring
{3 to?
¥  Ar Conceptd.
B G Well, just think about it a moment, because what you are
16] saying in the letter, "Although we made some suggestions
{71 to enhance Collect & Select, a revolutionary concept
@ along the lines proposed would put Shell miles ahead of
t the opposition”, Do you see that?
{10]  A: Yes.
(111  Q: So are the suggestions to enhance Collect & Select the

[12] same as the revolutionary concept?

113] A No.

[14]  Q: Again, do you recall what you are referring to here?

115)  A: Not clearly, no.

{16 Gt When you went to make presentations with Mr Donovan,
who

1171 would normally take the lead role in making the oral
{18] presentation?
1151  A: John Donovan.
20 Qi Who would normally - was there any division of labour
{21] between you?
22  A: Yes, I would probably take care of the technical aspects
123 of the game picce production, prize fund development and
24} things like that and security matters.
[2s] Q: Was Mr Donovan good on the talking side?
Page 97

(11 As Yes.

21 Q: Presentationally?

[} A: Yes, certainly with Shell, yes.

gl  Q: And letters again, would you divide those between

5 yourseclves?
&1  A: Yes, and do them together in the main.
7 @: Moving on through the leiter of 446; "Nice to know that
[8] senior management want to keep our multibrand loyalty
{91 concept in the locker. Also interesting to hear it
(101 could have applications in other Shell markets”,
{111 Again, what were you referring to there as you
112} understood it?
113)  A; Other Shell markets of the world.
(4] Q: About 'being nice to know that they wanted to keep our
{15] muitibrand loyalty concept in the locker". What were
[16] you referring to there?

(171 Ai Literally the multibrand scheme.
118 Qi Turn the page, because you then introduce the Star Trele
['e] "We do seem to have won 2 great consolation

[20] prize.The exercise has been well worthwhile. We do
(21] seem to have won a great consolation prize. I refer of
{z2) course to the Star Trek project. We are finalising

11 A: Print buyer.

21  Q: "On the basis that Shell does adopt our proposal for a
@ Star Trek themed ‘blockbuster’, we confirm cur agreement
] as requested to forego an option scheme on the

i5] multibrand loyaity scheme, This is on the understanding

61 that the rights to the multibrand scheme remain vested

@ solely with Don Marketing”,

] When you wrote that paragraph, did you write it on

| 24th July 19907

pm At Yes,
1141 Qi Was it written in fact, as put to you, after 19977
3 At No.

a1 Gt Whenyouwrotc that paragraph,and said that "We confirm
[14] our agreement as you" i.c Paul King "requested to forego
(15} an option scheme™, was that truthfully what Mr King had
He) requested?
1 A: Yes.
pel  Q: Whatdo youremember MrKing's concern was toachieve by
[19) this?
oy A: So that we were not able to take that concept to any
i21) other oil company.
2] @ Why was he concerned?
@3] A: Because he thought that it was a valuable concept that
[24] certainly had merit for the promotional purposes.
5 Qi And what was particular about the moment that had
Page 99

{11 arrived then on the 24th that made him want to reach
[2] that arrangement at that time?

18] At Because they did not have an immediate use for it.

#l  Q: Again, you were disclosing this to Sainsbury, were you
[5] not?

6]  A: Yes.

(1 Q: Until this acrangement was reached, you could have

8] legitimately approached Sainsbury with the concept, yes?

B Al Yes
1 Q: Can you help me, and if you cannot, say so, why Mr King
[11} chose this moment to say that he would like you to agree
[12] to keep it at Sheil's disposal. If you cannot help me

[13] then say so?

4] Ai No,1don’t think 1 can.

ps; Qo All right.

161 -~ MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Just a second. (Pause.)

1177 MR COX: "1 should add that John Donovan has verified with
(18] John Chambers that Leo Burnett’s agreement with Don

[18] Marketing was only in respect of the advertising

[20] campaign they devised for the MegaMatch multibrand game

[21) that.That agreement is mentioned in a2 memo recording a

{22) discussion between Ken Danson” - who is I think a Shell

(23] or ex-Sheil employee?

t23) details with Stuart Carson and Sarah Harman, Good to 24 A: Yes.
P4 hcar from Stuart that we will be working with Alan Roman 251 Q: "..and John Chambers", who was at that time employed by
{25} again®, who was the print gentleman? Page 100
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11 Don Marketing, correct?

B A Yes.

] ¢ "...who has kindly supplied us with a copy". What was
#] the purposc of that paragraph?

B At To show that - that was in responsc I think to a

i6] question by Paul, as to whether anybody else had an

{7} intercst in what it was that we were proposing.

B @Q: In the multibrand loyalty scheme?

m A Yes.
[ Q: You are clearing that up by saying that John Donovan, to
111] whom it implies you have spoken, has verified with John
{12) Chambers that Leo Burnett's agreement with Don Marketing
1131 was only in respect to the advertising campaign they

(1¢] devised for the MegaMatch muitibrand game. Is that

18] right?

116] A Yes.

17 Qi That agreement is mentioned in 2 memo recording that

18] discussion.

(18] If we turn the page, the actual concept or
[20] programme is set out. Now, again you understand that
[21] what is being said here is that this letterisa

22} forgery?
23 A Yes.
2] Qi Thatyouhave cooked it up with Mr Donovan sometime in

[25) 1997. One of the things you mentioned when you were
Page 101

(1 Sainsbury to move into game activity. Willing to

tz) consider the opportunity at a later date.”

@ Then the multibrand loyalty programme. I do not
¥l want to go through it all with you because you have
5] been, but what you have said is that in writing this

16 letter some more detail would have been added in the
[7 articulation and formulation of it in writing?

| A Yes.
i Qi Is that your position?
o] A: Yes,

(111 Qi So you would have discussed what in relation to it, not
[12) necessarily about the points but what would you have got
{19 across to Mr Horley concerning this? )
(4]  Ac Iam sorry, I am not clear.
18 Qi You have said some more detail was added for the
(16] purposes of this letter?
pnn A Yes.
18 Qi Now,when you explained the ideas to Mr Horley, did you
[tg] explain it in all its details or the essential structure
zq) of it?
211  A; The essential structure of it.
22 Q: So what you would have conveyed to Mr Horley is the
23] essential structure of the scheme?
241  A: Yes,in the form of a tease.
1251  Q: Could you tell his Lordship what that essential
Page 103

11] being questioned about this, you said that was John

{21 Donovan’s crystal ball. You said it with a sort of

@ humourous inflection in your voice. What do you mean by

@] that?

B  A: Alotwassaidyesterday abouthow John Donovan hasbeen
ié1 able to see into the future with regard to some of the

(71 concepts that he devised, and it actually happened.

@ Qi Again, you have known John Donovan quitc a long time,
(5] have you not?

o At Yes.
[t Qi As an ideas man, how do you rank him?
1z A: Very good.

13 Qi Has it happened in the past that he has been able o, as
(14 it were, predict what happened in the future in the

15} promotional game?

e A: Yes, he hasiooked very clearly ahcad and come up with
[171 the answers as to what may be happening.

i8] Q: So when you said John Donovan’s crystal ball, you did
19] not mean that to be ironic; you meant it seriously, did

[20] you?

2]  A: Yes.

22)  Q: Soletus have a look at the letter itself. "Writing to

{23 confirm the main points of the telephone discussions

[1] structure would have been, as you understood it?

21 A: The basics of the multibrand loyalty scheme.

B Q: Which was?

#  A: The consortium scheme that is mentioned in those
[5] previous proposals.

Il  Q: But exacty - help us now, I know it is a long time

[71 ago, but how would you have described it to Mr Horley?

B MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Mr Cox, just a sccond.There are two
19 possibilitics. How would you have described it and how
110} did you describe it? First will you tell me what you

{11] recall, actually recall of what you szid to Mr Horley

(12 and then answer insofar as there are gaps in your memory
[13] what you think you would have done. I am anxious to

[} know what you recall. If you do not recall it, tell me?

e Ar Idon’t think ] recall it,

e} MR COX: Very well. Looking at the letter as a whole, and
{17] you have had a chance to look at it several times now,

118} first, is it a letter that was written, as I have asked

18] you,in relation to the other letter on 24th July 1990

20 and not in 19977

121 Az Yes.

[22) Gt Second, did you have a discussion with Mr Horley about
[23] the muitibrand loyalty scheme?

[24] with John Donovan and I have had with you. 24 A: Yes. ’

z5]  "You have decided the timing not right for 251 Q: Third, did you convey him some details concerning it?
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A: Yes.
Q: Fourth,whenyouwenttosee MrLazenby on 24th November
1992 - do you remember?

i
@
B

B A Yes.

B Qi You were asked questions about that on Friday?

B At Yes.

71 Qi Did you put the note at page 450B on it on that day?
B A: Yes.

1 G Does it follow from that, did you have the letter with

[10] you at that meeting?

pn At Yes.

12 Q: When you noted that a copy of this letter was left with
113 AL, did that record the fact that you knew such a copy

{(14] had been given to him?

tis  A: Yes.

te} Qi When you wrote that Shell will negotiate royalty

(17] arrangements with us if they progress the scheme ata

(i3] future date, did that too reflect a discussion that had

" 191 been held with Mr Lazenby on 24th November 199217

oy A: Yes.
@] Q: Have a look at the top of page 450B;
122 "Being the originators of the idea, Don Marketing

[29) and our managing director, John Donovan, who has a
{24] personal stake in the project, would requirc an
125] appropriate concept fee, a role in the promotion, UK and
Page 105

i1 At Oh,yes.

@ Q: Have a look back in that same file - no, would you take
@ down E2. Page 973, top of 973, "Proposal for national

¥] promotion activity” on 12th May 1992. Do you see that.

5 9731

] A Yes.

@  Q: It has got your initials, top left?
m A: Yes.

gl Q: Those are your initials?

{tg) Az Yes.

111 Qi You wrote them?

13 A Yes.

13 Q: If you turn the pages, this was presented on the 12th
{4] May. On page 975 there is some writing?

157 A: Yes.
r6] @i Is that your writing?
171 A Yes,itis.

(18 G "Make money re-funcanbe producedinthreemonths. Al
pa concerned about lead in times for MegaMatch”,
ra Do you see that?
1] A: Yes.
27 Q: "AL willing to enter into discussions with potential
(23] partners. JAD to contact Woolworth, Safeway Little
127 Chef, Sun™
125 A:c Yes.
Page 107

{1 international royalties covering proprietary rights”,

1 Do you see that?
@# A Yes.
Bl G That letter was discussed in the mecting with

51 Mr Lazenby, you have given evidence?
B A: Yes.
7 Qi Was the note that you put at the bottom, was the top
@) paragraph of page 450B discussed in the meeting, looking
] at your own notc and camparing the two?
pa Ar Yes, but ~
111 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; "Yes, but” what?
12 A: Icouldn’t recall the detail and the content.
{131 MR COX: Going through the letter, onc reaches that
114] paragraph about royalties and the concept fee. What you
i*5} have recorded is the upshot of the discussion on 4508,
[16] is that right?
nn At Yes.
(18]  Q: What you have not recorded is the process of discussion
118] by which that conclusion was reached, is that right?

{11 Q: Turn the page.These are the type of notes you would
121 make during a mecting, are they?

@ A Yes.

Kl Q: Itis 979; AL says soccer theme produced poor results
@l in research.” Do you see that?

] Ar Yes.

m Qi Your writing?

®m  A: Yes.

8 Q: Turn the page to conclusion, 980. Is that your writing
{101 on page 9807
H1]  A: Yes.
(127 Qi Did you put that note there on the 12th May 19927
13 At Yes.
14  Qr Does it reflect a discussion that you had on the 12th
[15] May 1992?
i1 A Yes.
p7n Qi "RGS mentioned". What does that gnean? It may sound a

{rg very silly question but answer it anyway, would you.

. ng  "RGS mentioned". What does that mean?
2] A: Thatis correct. 200 = A: That I brought the subject up.
211 Qi You have simply recorded the conclusion. Is that R Q:t You brought the subject up?
22 something you were in the habit of deing when you had 22 A Yes.
23 meetings? z3) Qi "Muitibrand loyalty card scheme presented to Paul King.
g A ch: . [24] AL said Shell could be interested but at a later date.
= Q: Writing on the documents themselves? {251 Will ask Paul for proposal to make sure it is retained
o = Page 106 ) Page 108
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1] for long-term".

@  Does that reflect the short upshot of that
{9 discussion?
W A: Yes.

5]  Q: Is there any doubt in your mind that that was discussed
[6] on that day, given your note?
m  A: No doubt in my mind.
B Q; Would there have been any reason whatsoever for you to
Is1 put a note there reflecting that discussion if it had
{10] not in fact taken place?
i At No.
f121 Qi Let us look at the note for 2 moment. "RGS mentioned®,
f13 so you have given evidence that would suggest that you
14 brought it up, correct?
s At Yes.
{16  Q: "Multibrand loyalty card scheme presented to Paul
117} King". Does it follow from that note, tell me please,
i) that you would have said that it was presenied, the

" (st idea, originally to Paul King?

pap  A:i Yes.
21 Qi Can you recall, to usc his Lordship’s formulation first,
[22} can you recall whether you did explain the circumstances
{23] in which it had been presented to Paul King, the
241 history?
sl A; Sorry?
Page 108

1 Q: YouI think were not involved in any follow up letiers
(7 after the May 1992 mecting with Mr Lazenby, were you?

8 At [ do not think so, not with letters, but with meetings.

@l Q Isitright that during this period you were coming in
| @ part-time or from time to time?

1  A: Yes.

M Qi Notas a full time employee?

@ At No.

@ Q: Why was that?

tgj At Because John Donovan was running the company atthe
111) lowest possible level and all the staff had been made
112) redundant. I was working on a speculative basis with
i3] John Donovan, helping with these proposails in the hope
114] that we could generate some new more business.
t5)  Q: I want 1o move on to later cvents, if I may, please?
1151 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Cox, before you do, can I ask same
[171 questions which you may want to re-cxamine on.
(18] MR COX: Yes, indeed.
(91 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Sotherton, can I ask you to go to
120] volume E1 and go to page 446.
211  I'want you to understand that of course on the
{22] assumption that this was written on the date it says it
{23) was, and )fou know that Mr Hobbs says it was not ~
24 A Yes.
257 Q: Butif it was, it is a long time ago and of course
Page 111

Q: Can you remember whether you explained the circumst-
ances

[2] in which it had been presented to Paul King?

(1

@  A: Oh,yes, in terms of confidentiality.

#i Qi Yes, not just that, but the history?

5 A Of development, yes,

|1 Qi Yes?

M A Yes.

#  Q: Would you have just - first, can you remember -

i9] perhaps they clide these two questions so may I put it
110) this way. Would you have just said "Oh, we presented
114 this idea to Paul King", or would you have gone into
{12] some of the history about it?
113} At Probably a little history.
4 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Probablymeans that youcannotrecall
[15] but you think it is likely?
pnsl Ai Yes. :
171 MR COX: Think it is likely, yes. "AL said Shell could be
{18] interested but at a later date. Will ask Paul for
{18 proposal to make sure it is retained for the long-term".

2] Was Paul King still working in the Department in

[21] May 927 think it is common ground, my Lord.

221 A: I think he must have been, yes,

23]  Q: So,in your mind, recording that, there would have been

1241 no difficulty for Mr Lazenby to ask Mr King about it?
i25-  A: No.
Page 110

111 everybody’s memory fails them. ] want you to do the

(2 best you can. As I understand it, if you look at 446,

[3] this was a letter which was sent to Mr King after 2

] discussion that you had with Mr King?

B A Yes,

8] Qi In that discussion, apparently, look at paragraph 2,
71 Mr King had expressed a desire that a message should be
@] conveyed to Shell. Do you see that?

B MR COX: To Sainsbury, my Lord.
o) MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Sorry, to Sainsbury?
1] At Yes.
(7 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: So he was anxious to tell Sainsbury
3] something?
14 A: Yes.
s Qi And that was that Sainsbury was a good partner?
sl A: Yes.
(171 Qi At the same time as that we know from the contents of

(9] that letter that the other letter, the Ietter to
18] Sainsbury itself, was shown to Mr King?

2o A: Yes.

21 Qi And that you will find at 4497

2z At Yes.

23 Q: If you look at page 450, you have explzained what a good
{24 idea it is? ;

25 A Yes.
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(11 . @t Thenin the third paragraph you say; 111 Qi Mr Cox has just drawn your attention to a letter, to a
@ "Either Dot Marketing or Shell will be in contact [z note you made {two years later, page 980 in E2. Do you
[@ with you at an appropriate date in the future”. i3 remember your manuscript at the bottom?
Kl 80 at least, Mr Sotherton, as far as I can sec #  A: Yes.
®l reading this, what this is saying is "When it goes ahead 5] - G "MrSothertonmentionedmultibrandloyalty in the scheme
[6] you are going to be the partner or you are going to be 8] presented to Paul King. Said Shell would be interested
[ one of the partners. Shell is anxious for you to be one {7} but at a later date. Wil] ask Paul for proposals to
@ of the partners". | make sure it is retained for long-term."
B Ac Yes. i1  Now,according to your evidence, two years
e Qi CanIask you to look at page — one other thing of [0 earlier, you had entered into a binding relationship
(111 course is that 447, that is the second patagraph, as far 111 with Shell which protected this without limit of time?
{12} a8 you can recall, were you anxious to put in place a 1z A Yes.
13 binding option at this stage, that is an option binding 13]Gt Why were you saying here that you would contact them
{14] Shell? [14] with a view to securing it for the long-term if that
1t5]  A: Yes, we would have been keen to do that, yes. [15] ‘was something that had already happened. Do you
Het  Q: Would it have been high in the list of priorities? pe understand the point?
i A Yes, 1171 A: This refers to the proposal itseif.
13 Q: All right Now can I ask you to go back to page 421, 1eg (3.15 pm)
" 1191 which is just a few weeks earlier. Can I ask you to 11 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Soriy, I do not understand?
0 read the last paragraph to yoursclf. (Pausc.) ey A: No, this refers to the proposal, the proposal document.
121] At this stage, Mr Sotherton, it looks like Shell's 211 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Doces this relate to the multibrand
. [27] attitude was not "We are anxious to get Sainsbury on 129 loyalty proposal?
’ 2 board", but, on the contrary, "We do not want to look as 23 At Yes. '
24 if we are making any moves at all and certainly we do 1241 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: The idea here is that you would
{£5] not want any commitment”, 251 enter ~ that Paul King should make proposals to ensure
Page 118 Page 115
M A: Yes. (1] that it [the scheme] is retained for the long-term?
[21 Q: Which seems to be quite different, does it not, to the 7 A: Yes.
[ letters in July, where what they arc suggesting is that @ MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Butyouhadalready done thattwoyears
#! Shell will be contacting Sainsbury. It is quite u] before, if the carlier letter -
s different, is it not? @B  A: No, the retention was to be by Mr Lazenby.
B A: Yes, I take your point. © MR JUSTICE LADDIE; So Mr Lazenby will ask Paul ~
.. m Qi When did this change in attitude by Shell occur, just 71 A: Thatis correct, i
) m bearing in mind, Mr Sotherton, that as I understand it B MR JUSTICE LADDIE: For a propesal to make sure —
i from June onwards Shell were not terribly interested in m A Yes.
(19 going ahead with the multi-partner loyalty scheme at Hg MR JUSTICE LADDIE: But nothing nceded to be sought from
{111 all. Nevertheless, when did this change in attitude (11 Mr King because you already had a letter saying it was
112) from the sort of rather laid back non-committal to {12 retained, did you not? What did Mr King have to
(3] anxious commitment, When did that happen? Do you {13} supply? You already had a letter which said that this
[14] remnember a conversation with Mr King where that 4] was retained?
15 bappened? 18 At Yes,Paul King would have had the original proposal that
(tes At No,Icanonly remember ongoing conversations, thathe 116! he could pass on to Mr Lazenby. Which is what the note
i'7] was always keen to continue exploring that avenue, but I [17] refers to.
I8 can't remember the specifics of it all, no. (g MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Thank you.
i1e]  Q: All right, Mr Sotherton, We have already seen in the 1151 MR COX: Mr Sotherton, you were all advertising men, or
(2o} second letter of 24th July 1970 (sic) the reference to (20 rather, pramotions men, were you not? Do you know
121] the option to Shell. That was, as I understand it, you {z1] whether, if at all, the arrangement you came to in some
{22} say, a binding relationship between you and Shell, under (22 haste on 24th July 1990 would have had a binding legat
29 which Shell had the option to take on this new (23] effect? Do you know whether it was legally binding or
[24 promotional scheme? . 24 not? :
&8 _A; Yes. 25 At Notreally.
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(28] kibO'Lll' it at this stage.

(11 Qi No.What happened on 24th July - is this correct -

21 was that you sought, or rather, Mr King requested an

19) arrangement whercby -

Ml MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Cox, I have given you immense

i8] latitude. To start 2 question in re-cxamination; "Is

18 not the position as follows; Mr King ...", so on and so

[ forth.That is about as leading a question as it is

@] possible to get.

® MR COX: I was taking into account that your Lordship is not
[0} a jury and would understand- -
(111 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: That has nothing to dowith it, Mr Cox.
(123 The rules of evidence apply as much in this court as

{13} anywhere else,

[ MR COX; My Lord, I wholly accept that, But [ am troubled
{15] about the rules of evidence and the way in which these

{161 whole allegations have been raised. I think perhaps,

(171 once I have completed my submissions ~

(s MR JUSTICE LADDIE: They come asno surprisc tome,Mr Cox.
(1e] MR COX: Forgive me, 1 am not following your Lordship's

[20) obscrvation.

211 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; None ofthe allegations made by Mr Hobbs
[22] has come as any surprise to me, Having read the papers

23] and the cvidence, none of them has come as a surprised

[24] to me.

(2s] MR COX: My Lord, 1 am astonished to here your Lordship say

Page 117

11 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Of course I have your point.

21 MR COX: Mr Sotherton, dealing with his Lordship’s question
(3] just 2 moment ago, if I may. I have asked you whether

¥) you understood it to be binding in legal cffect. Was

{5 that the first time you had met Mr Lazenby, in May 19927

B  Ai Yes.

M Q: And hec was a new Promotions Manager; is that what you
[® understood?

B A Yes.

(1o}  Q: When you spoke to Mr Lazenby - as far as the note

(11} records your recollection. If you could look at it

[12) again;

(13 "..mentioned multibrand loyalty card scheme

{14] presented to Paul King. Shell could be interested but

115] at a later date. Will ask Paul for a proposal to make

(16} sure it is retained for long-term.*

(171 What do you understand that observation to mean?

(+8) Just explain to me again, would you, so I understand

{19) ‘what you are saying. Mr Lazenby says Shell could be

{2) interested but at a later date?

21 A: Yes.They have expressed an interest but would like to
122] keep a reminder of same sort on file, I would think.

23 Q: You see, what is being asked of you, an enquiry is put
4] of you; well, if you had the option beforehand, how does

[25) that affect this note? Did you recollect the option at

Pags 119

[1]1 that. They are not raised in the pleadings.
21 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; This is a matter which will have 1o be
{3] dealt with between counse] and me later. Let us get on
] with the evidence. The witness needs to be released
[5] from the witness box.
© MR COX: I agree, my Lord. But I am gravely troubled by it,
[7] and it is a matter 1 feel I will have to raise with you,
[8] if not today, then tomorrow morning.
g MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Finc. Do it then.
o MR COX; Because these are serious allegations and the
{11] foundation put forward, it will be our submission, is a
[12] tissue without substance.
031 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: At the very beginning of this case,
(14] Mr Cox, it was quite apparent that cach side was saying
[15] that the other side was not telling the truth, Or at
[16] least that has been my understanding from the very
[17] outset.
118 MR COX: But your Lordship will lock in vain in a paper
(18] produced by the defendant for any indication that
{201 forgery of documents that had been with the defendant
{21] for months was going to be raised during the course of
(22) that wial Now that places the claimant -
23] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Continue with the re-examination.
24 MR COX: My Lord, your Lordship has my point. I necd not
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{1 the time? Did you know of the option, but not mention

{2) it? What is the position?

#3 At I would think that, as the option was not discussed, it
#] had been forgotten or was of no concern at the time.

B Q: Can you remember now whether it was discussed?
1  A: Ido not belicve it was, as an option.

M Q: Why do you say that?

m  A: I think I would have made a note of it, to be honest

jo] ‘with you. If there were specifics, I would have made a
[10] note.
111 Q: Right, S0, if the option had been mentioned explicitly,
{17] you would have made a note, you believe?
13 A: Yes.
14 Qi Very well. Let us move on, if we may, please, to later
[15] events. You mention that Mr Donovan had spoken to you
[16] same time - some years - later about his concerns
[17] relating to the Multibrand Scheme. You said that your
18] reaction had been, "Oh, here we go again, keeping in
ne mind the three previous cascs that had been some while
120 before". How long after those three previous cases do
[21] you recollect that he had contacted you and spoken to
[22) you about the multibrand ...

1231 A: Maybe half a dozen months.
24  Q: Was it after the settlement of those cases?
251 A: Yes.
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11} - Qi So the first time he contacted you to register his

{2} concerns about the multibrand loyalty concept was same
@ half a dozen months after the setilement of those

K] earlier cases?

B A Yes, _

181  Q: Thatis your best recollection?

m A Yes.

@  Q: Now,the scttlement of those cases - I think if we look

18] at the core bundle, the green bundie B - you were in
(10 fact a party too, were you not? You signed it, is what
[11] Lmean by that.Tab 4, (IV), page 25.
1z A: Yes.
13 G Itmay be difficuit for you to recall, but can you
{14] remember whether it was after this document that you had
(15] signed that Mr Donovan contacted you?

1e At Yes, most certainly. Yes.

17 Q: Which was it, before or after?

(18] A; After, sorry.

119 Q: So,when you said to Mr Hobbs earlicr that it was, "Oh

120 here we go again, keeping in mind the three previous
[21] ¢ases that had been some while before®, you were

122) referring to a time after the settlement of those cases,
123) as you recollect it?

24 A: Yes.
251  Q: Thank you, Mr Sotherton. Would your Lordship just bear
Page 121
(1] with me a moment? Thank you.
@  MRHOBBS: I would like to ask one or two more questions,

3; my Lord.
# MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Arc they neccssary?
[ MRHOBBS: Yes.
1]  Further Cross-examination by MR HOBBS
(n Mr Sotherton, did you, over this Iast weekend,
[l discuss your evidence in this casc with any relatives of
8] yours?
fap At No.
(11 @ Didyou discuss your evidence in this case with anybody
12] else in this case? Mr Donovan, for cxample?
3 A: No. '
{4  Q: You are quite surc about that, are you?

ns) Az Very sure about it.
(161 Qs Right
1171 MR COX: No further questions. Thank you very much,

t8] Mr Sotherton.

(19  (The witness withdrew)

(20 My Lord, I have Mr Armstrong-Holmes here, but

{21j there is an issue that I would like to raise with

122 your Lordship and I am in your Lordship’s hands as to
23] when it should be.

24 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Would you prefer Mr Armstrong-Holmes
_to

125 deave the court while —
Page 122

(11 MR COX: I am very happy for him to do so. My concern is
17] that maybe - I know he has waited a Jong time - it

3] would be better and more advantageous to him to be

] called. But I apprehend he may, in any event, have to

(8 return tomorrow, subject to Mr Hobbs,

©] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Hobbs, how long do you expect to be?
m  MRHOBBS: I think we should finish him today.

B MR COX: In that case,mayI call him? Mr Armstrong-Holmes,
19 please.

o) MR JOHN ARMSTRONG-HOLMES (sworn)

(111  Examinationinchief by MR COX

(121 MR COX:Your Lordship should have a replaced, revised

[19] statement in your Lordship’s bundie.

14 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Has that been put into my file?

(1s] MR COX: I hope so, my Lord. I do not know, Yes, it has,

e MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Yes.

1177 MB COX: It should end at paragraph 18, my Lord.

8 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: It should end at 187

119y MR COX: It should do, my Lord.

oy MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mine ends at 23. What does yours end

21] at, Mr Hobbs?

22 MR HOBBS: To where it did before, but Mr Robertsis telling
(23] me it should end between 17 and 18.

4] MR COX: My Lord, we have that for your Lordship.

zs}  (Handed).
Page 123

(11 MrArmstrong-Holmes, if you turn to your right,

{2] you will find the carousel with a yellow bundle marked

1@ CI.Itis in front of you, is it?

Ml A; Yes,

B Q: Ifyou could turn to tab 5, please. You will find there
{6] a copy of a witness statement?

m At Yes.
B} Qi Which, I hope, should bear your signature at the end?
©  A: It does not bear my signature but ...

(o) Q: It does?

(t1) At It does not have my actual signature.

1127 MR COX: My Lord, this is the revised one, The original was

(19] signed. I hope no point need be taken on it,

{14)  MrArmstrong-Holmes, your original statecment

(15) I think concluded in 24 paragraphs. In fact, for

[16] various reasons, it has been cut down only to 18

[17 paragraphs. It nieed not trouble you for the moment,
(1] I will not be asking you questions at this stage. Do

{19) you confirm that the contents of all of your original
{20] statement as you put it in were correct and true to the
(z1] best of your knowledge?

271 A: Yes,Ido.

23}  Q: Would you remain there, because there will be questions
{24] for you.

5]  Cross-examination by MR HOBBS
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(11 MR HOBBS: As I understand it, Mr McMahon is present in
{2 court,is he?

B MR COX: No, he is not.

¥ MR HOBBS: He is not. Thank you.

B  MrArmstrong-Holmes, can [ ask you; have you been

6 in attendance during any part of this trial up until

F now?

Bl A: I came for the first time on Friday.

@ Qi Have youreceived any reports as to what was going onin
140 your absence?
11 A: No.

(122 Q: There came a time, did there not, when you were

113 approached by Mr Donovan to give evidence in these

[14] proceedings?

5] As That is right.

i'61 Qi Do you remember that occasion?

177 At It was in March of this year.

117 Q¢ How did he make contact with you?

ngi  A: He wrote me a letter,

2 Qi Iam not aware that I have scen that letter. Are you

1 willing to produce a copy of it?
P2 At Well, I do not have it with me, but he wrote me a

' 28] letter, I seem to remember,

241 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I think the question was: do you object
125 to producing a copy of it?
Page 125

(1] him?

] At He suspected that Mr Lazenby had not purchased the

@ concept from me.

#1  Q: Was he in fact putting it to you that Mr Lazenby had

5] done something improper towards you?

© A: It was perhaps inferred, yes.

m  Q: I beg your pardon?

m  A: Itis probably inferred.

Qi Youmean it was not explicit but you were left to work
(1q) it out for yourself?

111 Ai Well, I am not a stupid man, Mr Hobbs, and, reading

{12] between the lines, it was inferred.

113 Qi How did you react to this letter?

(4] At Tcalled Mr Donovan and asked him if he would sendme
115 the documents that related to me.

116) Q: And you had a conversation with John Donovan at that
{17) time beyond simply asking for documents, did you not?

par  A: Itwas purely and simply that he had got a case against
{19; Shell. He did not go into any great detail.

2o} Qi What little detail did he go into?
1211  A: That he was involved in a litigation with Shell.
2z Qi Did he not outline to you what the nature of that

[2a] complaint was?
12 A: No.
ps] Qi Were you not interested to know?
Page 127

111 A: Sorry.No, I do not object.
@ MR HOBBS: I call for production of that letter, pleasc.
3 Canljust ask you this; what do you recollect the gist
K] of the letter to be?
B At That he was involved in a litigation against Shell UK
€] and that, within the discovery procedure, he had found
1 documents which I had actually submitted to Shell UK.
@ Q: Goon
@ A: That was the gist of it.
(19 Qi Did he go on to indicate in that letter what it was he
[11] wanted you to do, if you would?
(123 A: He was asking in effect if 1 would be willing to be a
(13 witness for him. That is what I read between the lines,
{14] and invited me to give him a telephone call.
(5]  Q: Right. Were there any enclosures to that letter in the
(t6] form of the discovery documents?

(71 A: No, there were no enclosures at that particular time.
rEl Qi 'Was Mr Andrew Lazenby's name mentioned in thatletter?
et A: Yes, he was.

Pa Q: What was it that he said about Andrew Lazenby in that
[21] letter to you?

22 A: Heasked meifMr Andrew Lazenby had purchasedaconcept
23] from me called "Spring Into Shell”.

(1 At Not particularly. I was more interested in my own
{21 concerns.
i3 Qi What were your concerns?
¥  Ai Myconcernst My concerns were if something had happened
{& that I had been involved with that had, shall we say,
{61 not been acted on in the correct manner.
71 @ So your passions had been aroused by the letter you had
@® received from him?
m  A: Of course,
ft6i Qi What then happened after this telephone conversation?
11 At Ireceived the documents related to a concept of ours,
1121 which was cailed Spring Into Shell. I also received
[13] another document as well.
(4] @t Approximately how many documents did you receive? Can
[15] you say naw?

t15)  A: Half a dozen.

i1im Qi Before -

(181 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Sorry. You received another document.
{199  What was the other document?

2o A: Sorry, sir? '

21 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: You said you received another document,
22  You said, "I received the documents relating to Spring

23] Into Shell and another document”. What was the other

] Q: Was there anything elsc in that Jetter about 24] document?

=] Andrcw Lazenby and Mr John Donovan’s observations about 28]  A: Thatwasadocument to,I believe,a company calledthe
- Page 126 Page 128
Smith Bernal Rep.(0171-404 1400) Min-U-Scripte (34) Page 125 - Page 128



Qff T T—— AR, W

‘ Shell__UK Ltd

wrmmar ¥ SR ¥ e

ray o

June 21, 1999

[1}.Hazell Consultancy.
4 MR HOBBS: What was that abont?
(3]  A: That was a letter from Mr Lazenby to the
#] Hazell Consultancy.
B Qi What was it about?
161 A: It was advising Hazell Consultancy that they would not
7] be proceeding with a concept for the garden concept
[B] which Shell had put out for research as it had been a
[ project that Shell themselves had been working on and
[10] working up internally.
[113 Qi Before you received this letter from Don Marketing, the
(12] first letter we just spoke about that prompted your
{13] phone call, had you received any other form of
{t#4] communication from John Donovan?
15 Ar No,sir
(6] Qi Was this the first communication you had ever received
[17] from John Donovan?
118}  A: The very frst.
(191 Qi AmIrightin thinking that you did not know
fzq) John Donovan?
211 A: Iknew of him because I had read about him in trade
(28] media, but I had never met hitn before in my life. The
(23] first time I saw him was when he was giving cvidence on
{24] Friday.
2s] Qi So you had never seen him, you had never spoken to him
Page 129

i1 A: I beg your pardon?
71 Q: He did not discuss long-term —

3 A: Notat the meeting, he did not, no. But he did
¥l subsequently in a telephone conversation with me.
B  Q: Did he?

6] A: Yes, he did.

7 Q: Isee.We had reached the position just before we
@] digressed there where you received back from Mr Donovan
91 a sclection of letters? '
(10 A: Ireceived back my first letter to a Mr MacNab at Sheli,
{11] 1 received a copy of a letter from Andrew Lazenby to me,
112] I received a copy of my proposal to Shell, I received a
118 further copy of a letter from me to Shell and I received
[14] a copy of a letter for the Hazell Consultancy.
i15] Qi Right.What did you do with those letters after you
(6] received them? You kept them, you read them and then
{171 what? ’
1ig At I then agreed to write to Royce Tredwell.
res,  Q: You sayyou thenagreed to write to Royce Tredwell. How
2q does that come about? Somcbody asks you, do they,
(21) whether you would be willing to give a witness
{22) statement?
23]  A: Yes.Iwas asked if I would be willing. I have said
[24] that already, I belicve.
125 Qi Who asked you?
Page 131

(13 but you had heard of him through trade media?

@ A Yes.

@ Q: AsIunderstand it, you had not heard of his company; is

¢ that correct?

i1 A: No,I had heard of Don Marketing before and in fact

i8] I believe, at the particular time I met with Mr Lazenby

7 and in discussions with him after, Don Marketing came up

[l at onc point at that time.

Bl Q: You say you believe that. What makes you believe that?
fo) At Because | remember at the particular time I met with
[11] Mr Lazenby they were talking about a lot of short-term
112 promotions, one of which was the Star Trek promotion,

(3] which was linked in with Don Marketing.
4]  Q: You say he discussed all that with you?

115 At He discussed it. It was a successful promotion.
116  Q; He discussed it with you?
(171 A: Loosely, briefly.

18 (3.30 pm)

Hg Qi What do you mean "loosely” and "briefly"? I need a

120 litde bit more help from you as to the conversation you

[21] are referring to.

22 A: The conversation I am referring to is, when I met with
{23) Mr Lazenby, he talked about short-term promotions.

241 Q: He did not discuss long-term promotions with you at all,
28 did he?
=2 Fage 130

i1  A: Mr Donovan.

2] Qi So he contacted you again after you had received the

13} material which he had sent to you?

¥l A: No, be had already asked me at the beginning, when

@ 1first responded to his letter with a phone call, if

18] I would be willing. That is what the object of the

M letter was. He sent me these documents, which I read,

@ and it was then that I decided, having read those

91 documents through, that I would be willing to give a
[0 ‘witness statement.
1111 Q: So you reported back to sumebody that you would be
12} willing, having read the documents, to make a statement?
1131 A: Thatis right.
(41 Qi And that was John Donovan; that you reported back to?
115} Az I told him that | would send to his solicitors a letter
{16] of my recollections of cvents.

(11 Qi Right.You, therefore, spoke to John Donovan after you
(18] had received the material that he sent you?

ne  A: Yes Idid.

126  Q: Was this a long or short conversation?

217 At Short.

122 Q: What did you discuss in this short conversation?

23]  A: That it appears from the correspondence that I had got

(] then,in particular the Hazell Consultancy letter, 1 was

125] rather gobsmacked by it, 1o be honest.
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(11 Q: So you discussed that in some detail with him, did you?
7  A: Not in some detail. But that particular letter shook
3 me, ‘
¥ Qi Howdidtheconversation end? Were you going tomect or
[ speak to John Donovan again?
©  A: No,Ididnot speakto John Donovanagain.I then spoke
71 with Royce Tredwell.
@  Qu Arc you saying that, after the conversations that we
1 have just discussed, you and I, that your only
[ communications after that were with Royce Tredwell?
(11t At Yes.
21 Q: Did you, at any stage, sec a draft of the witness
(19 statement that John Donovan has put in in these
4] proceedings?
151  A: No, sir.
11€] Gt Did you, at any stage, to your knowledge, supply
{171 John Donovan with a copy of the witness statement you
(18] proposcd to put in these proccedings yourself?
{199 Ai No, sir.
1z Qi Now, there came a time when you met Mr Lazenby, and
21} 1 understand that that was in 19927
2z} A: That is right.

' 1R Q: Right.I think you said that he discussed with you

[24] short-term promotions?
5] A: At that particular meeting, yes, they had had -
Page 133

It Qi And there would have been no reason for him te do so,
121 would there?

@ At It depends, does it not? I cannot say whether there

¥ would be any reason. I do not know. Primarily I was

5 there to discuss what my concept was; but you often move
181 away from that and you discuss other concepts that are

7) around at the time. Especially if they are running and

@ they have been successful. Because obviocusly they want

|9 to continue the success they have already had.

(i Q: You say there came a later point in time when you spoke
[11] to Mr Lazenby on the telephone.

g A: Thatis right.

(3 Q: Who rang who?

(41 A: I rang Mr Lazenby. It was shortly after 13th May.

ps Qi What did you want to know?

18] At Heagreed atthe meeting on the 1stto take our concept

117] to an internal meeting with 2 view to it being put out

(18] to research, and that meeting would decide whether or

[19] not our concept would go out to research.

120 Q: Soyouraised that with him, did you; what was happening
21) to your proposal?

2]  A: Thatis right.

s Qi And he gave you that answer?
4 A Ibeg your pardon?

125 Q: He gave you that answer, did he?

Page 135

(1 Qi Where did this meeting take place?
@ A: Sorry?
i3 Qi Where did this mecting take place?
1 A: Sheli-Mex Housc.
B Gt How long did it last?
6] Ai Round about two hours.
™M Q: Twohours. How didthe subject of short-tera promotions
@} come up, other than the one you were discussing with
t9] him?
0 Ag It started off he was telling me about they had had a
111] lot of success with short-term promotions, particularly
[12] ones that had "pester power", as he called them, [ seem
113] to recall. In other words, seducing children to
[14] actually purchase from their forecourts.
(5]  Q: I cannot quite remember, was this the meeting of
[16] 1st May that you arc talking about?
(171 At 1st May.That is the only meeting I had with
{18] Mr Lazenby.
i1 Q: Isec.Then you say there came a time
[20} subsequenily — well, let us be clear. He did not, at
21] that first meeting, according to you, mention
[22] Don Macketing, John Donovan or anything to do with
[23] cither of them, did he?
24 A: To the best of my knowledge, not at that particular
[25] meeting, no.
e Page 134

(]  A: He had already told me on May 1st that he was going to
f2) present to a meeting on 13th May our concept with a vicw
@) to recommending that it goes forward for research.
¥l  Q: So you rang him up to ask what had happened?
B  A:r Irang him up to ask what had happened.
] Qi Andhetold youwhathadhappencedandyouhavejusttold
71 my Lord what he told you?
B  A: He told me that it had been positive, He also told me
{e] that it would be going cut for research.
pnoy  Q: Your proposal was a short-term game plan, was it not?
(111 Ai It was a general concept. It could have been cither
112 shortterm or long-term.
113 Qi You put it forward as a short-term proposal, did you
[14] not?
115 At I put it forward as a proposal. If you actually read
[18) Q: Did you have any discussion on 16t May as to whether it
171 would be a long-term proposal or a short-term proposal?
rsf  A: There was no definitive. I think, although it was
{15] probably leading initiafly, that it might well be a
20] short-term proposal.
=1  Q: Right You reached this conversation you say you had on
[zz] the telephone on the 13th. You ask him what has
(23] happened to your proposal and he tells you it is going
24} out to research?
@s5] A: Thatisright.
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{11 - Qi And that was the end of that conversation, was it?

A: No, it was not the end of the conversation.

]
@ Qi What more happened in that conversation?
#] At He told me that, whilst it was being considered as a

@ short-term, it may well also be considered in a

[6] long-term scheme at that particular time, But initially

[ it was being sent out for research as a stand-alone

[ concept.

g1 Q¢ And,at that point, the conversation ended?
o]  A: No. He told me that the research would be back round
(111 about the end of July and that he would be back in touch
[12] with me then.
(3 Qi And then, at that point, the conversation ended?
(141 At Pretty much so, ] would think.
115] Qi Yes.Is the evidence you have just given the totality
118 of your evidence in relation to that conversation on
{17] 13th May?
¢#81 At Pretty much so, I think I have covered it ...
s Qi Right. There is nothing more that he said to you in the
2e] course of that conversation; correct?
211 At No, he was talking - if I think about it - I think he

. [221 mentioned something at that particular time - in fact,

' 28] now I am sure he did, as part of it. He talked about

[{24] options on schemes,

]  Q: Really? When did he say that much later?

0 Az Iremembercontacting Mt Lazenby again towards the end
18 of July 1992 and I asked him how the rescarch had gone.

1 He said words to the effect that; "Whilst the proposal

B we had put forward had not come top of the list out in

(5] research, it had done pretty well and that it was still

7] a possibility”.

@  Q: But that was much later than the conversation you and
19 I have just been discussing?

o At Yes.

i Qi It was after he put it into research. I cannot remember
112 specifically myself, but I think the research on this

{13] may have been done in S¢ptember or some such time?

(41 A: No,1think you will find it was done in July 1992, sir.

1151 @i Really?
116) Az The conclusion of that research.
171 Q: Thatisbascd on the discovery documents that were sent

18] to you, was it?

19 A No, it is not based on the discovery documents.
2o  Q: Then how do you know that?
21  A: Itis based on Mr Lazenby telling mae, from his meeting

(22) first of all in May 13th, which was the internal meeting
23] at Shell, which was discussing it going out to research,
24] and that rescarch was due to be concluded in July 1992,

5] Q¢ Really? Just apropos nothing, he discussed options? Is 5] Qi So there came a conclusion to that rescarch and you
Page 137 Page 139
{11 that what you are saying? (1] spoke again, you are saying?
17 A: He discussed options relating to a longer term scheme. @ A: InJuly 1992, yes.
B Q: What did he say to you, according to your evidence? ] Q: Right. Back end of July?
¥ A: I cannot remember it one hundred per cent, but { am B A: Yes,it was.
Bl pretty confident he said to me that he had an option on Q: Do you remember the conversation?
] At Yes, it was about the rescarch. He told me that our

1 alonger term scheme and our concept could well be
t7) incorporated as part of it. '

@  Q: That is the totality of what he said to you on that,
lg1 according to you, is it? Is it?

t1e]  A: I am thinking.
1] Q: Sorry.
(121 A: Iam just taking a moment to recollect. Yes, I think

13] I have covered it.

{4 Q: Right.That is the totality now. Do you think we have
(18 finally got to the totality of that conversation?

nel At Well, we could probably have discussed a few other
{171 things, other promotions. You ask guestions, you talk

(18] about questions,

18] Qe Yes, right. He did not, therefore, say to you that he
20} had inherited an option from a predecessor, did he?

211 A: I beg your pardont?

1271  G: He did not say to you that he had inherited an option
{23} from a predecessor, did he?

71 concept had not come out at the top of the list, because
f8] it was being rescarched amongst several other items. It
(8] had not come out at the top of the list, but that it had
{i0] done pretty well and that they were still exploring the
1) possibilities of its usc.
fz1 @ Okay. Do you say there was a discussion in the course
{13] of that conversation, the one at the end of July, about
{14] options?

15 A: No, not at that time, no,

116 @ There was not?

©71  A: Not at that particular time,

nep Qi Was there a discussion at some later stage about

{19] options?

26 A I rang Mr Lazenby up several times after that.

(21} Progressively the distance between each call got

22 longer. I think it would probably be about the summer
23 of 1993 when I called him to find out what was

4 = A: No, he did not at that particular time. No, sir. But [24] happening. He was talking to me then with words to the

25t he did much later. 125] effect that our concept was more likely to be

o Page 138 Page 140
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{11 incorporated in a longer term lovalty scheme, of which
121 they had an option.

B Qi This was in the summer of 1993, did you say?

¥l A: Yes, yes.

B Qi You are clear about that, are you -

©  A: Yes,Iam.

F1 @i - as vour recollection?

i  A: Yes.Ialso asked him at that particular point if he

9] would like to negotiate an option on our concept. It
1o} 'was then that Mr Lazenby told me that they do not
[11] negotiate options anymore, and I reminded him of a
I12] previous conversation that we had had in respect of an
113] option, It was then that Mr -
(41 Q¢ What previous conversation was that?
(18] A: This is going back to May 1992.
1189 Q: You had a conversation about options in May 19927
(7] At Yes. Because he told me he had an option during that
{18 phone call ~ which I have already said,
g1 1believe ~ and I reminded him about that situation.
eq It was then that he told me that that option had been
124} inherited from a predecessor.

{11 agency, which is at the end of July 1992, which is not
12] many months from after me having put a proposal to them,
3] ‘which was a unique first in the industry and a first
@] time presentation of a concept to Shell, which it was
©1 and which, I think you will find in my statement, that
8 confirms, he is writing to an agency purporting to have
M actually worked up the scheme himself internally in
@) Shell, which was -
© Qi How do you know he is referring to -
t1g MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Let him finish, Mr Hobbs.
(4 At Which heis purporting to be, because it wasbasedona
112 garden concept, dealing with bulbs, seeds and plants
(13] et cetera, writing to this agency in that respect and
{14] saying that Shell had been doing this scheme themselves,
{15) which was completely untrue. On that basis, yes, I was
[16) aggrieved.
11 MR HOBBS: Therefore you do have a sense of grievance
[18] against Mr Lazenby and his employers, Shell?
116)  A: Personally I have nothing against Shell, but I do not
120 like to sec people taking somebody like me for ride,
21] which he clearly was doing.

2 Q: He used those words, did he? 2z Qi Your assumption is that the discussion that he was
23]  A: Words to that effect, yes, 123] having with the other people related entirely to your
24 Qi You sec, I have taken those words, which I have just put 4] concept? That is the assumption you are making?
[25] to you, out of Mr Donovan's witness statement, but they 1zs]  A: If you read the actual paragraph in that letter, you
Page 141 Page 143
{11 are not in your witness statement. I am just wondering 1] will find it is a direct inference.

[z} how it is that Mr Donovan is giving evidence of what
8 Mr Lazenby is supposed to have said to you in those
K] terms, but it is not in your -

5] MR COX: It is.

&1 MR HOBBS: Those words "inherited an option”,

1 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Paragraph 17, the penultimate sentence.
® MR HOBBS: I will make good the point I have just made.

g Would you turn to Mr Donovan’s statement, C1, tab 1.In

{ie] paragraph 57 there is a quote "inherited an option from
(1] a predecessor” which is, I understand, Mr Donovan

(12 getting it from you; yes? I have not seen, in your

113] statement, those words "inherited an option". Perhaps

4] I am working on a different statement.

115 (3.45 pm)

té] It has just been pointed out to me for the first

7] time in my life. I apologise. I was asking you that

{18] question on a false basis.

11g1  A; Thank you very much.

200 Q: Iam very sorry. Now, the question I have for you is
{21) this; I have the impression that you have a personal

1221 sense of gricvance against Mr Lazenby; is that correct?

a1 A; I could not say I have a personal sense of grievance
{24] against Mr Lazenby. I hardly know the chap. Except
(2] that, when I rcad a Jetter that he sends to another

Page 142

2 Q: What I really want to put to you is this; your
131 recollection in relation to these option discussions,
#] you do not in fact recollect these conversations with
(51 him at all on the subject of options, do you?
@ A Yes,Ido.Quite clearly.
7 @ You say "quite cleatly”. You heard me ask you questions
i about the discussion on 13th May 1992 on the telephone.
] You remember me asking you those questions, do you not?
110  A; Yes,Ido.
(11 Qi I think I understood you to say - I think I have
(12} remembered correctly - you said the name of
a1 Don Marketing was not mentioned in that conversation?
(4  A: No,Ido not think I said that at that particular time
(15] at all. I think I may well have made reference to
{18) Don Marketing, or Don Marketing was made reference to
(171 vis-a-vis other promotions that were running at that
18 time. 1 am pretty sure that is what I replied to you,
119) Mr Hobbs.
200 Q: I pui it to you Mr Lazenby has no recollection of this
121} being said; that is to say, that there was any reference
1221 to Don Marketing in any conversation with you, and that
123) you could well be mistaken?
4]  A: Well, I think I am far from being mistaken, Mr Hobbs.
255 Qi Are you a member of any pressurc group relative to
Page 144
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(1i Shell? A Shell sharcholder pressure group member?

@ A: The only pressure group I am a member of is the
131 Conservative party. ‘

Q: Very good. Could you take E3, please, and turn to

Kl
Bl page 1178.
i  A: Yes.

M Q: Just look at that letter. Have you scen that letter
@ beforet
181 At Yes.That is the letter I was referring to, to the
{101 Hazell Consultancy.
f111  Q: That is the one which provoked your ire?
2 A: Yes, paragraph 3.
pg Qi Thank you,
(43  Re-examination by MR COX
115] MR COX: Mr Armstrong-Holmes, you feel a sense of grievance,
(161 but I want to ask you this - and it has not been
[17) spelled out to you; would you come to this court to tell
(18] a lie or to recollect something which you did not

" 118) recollect purely because you feel that you may have been

=)

1201 deccived or are justifiably aggrieved because of conduct
121 by Shell? ‘
B2 A: No,sir. I have the greatest respect for the law, but

~ 73 1 do believe in justice and fair play.

1241 Qi Do you vividly recall, as you have said to Mr Hobbs,
125t being told by Mr Lazenby that there was an option .
Pagae 145

{1] endeavour to get it to him as quickly as possible.

2 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: The witness may have to be recalied,
@ MR COX: He may have to be recalled if there were to be

@] questions following on from it. I am still unattended,

5] I am afraid, so I cannot even pass it on now.

1 I apologise.

i  (The witness withdrew)

e My Lord, I am anxious to call my next witness,

1 who, I apprehend, will be short. Indeed, my learned

11g friend has been good enough to say I may read him. But

1111 I have asked him to come because I wish to ask him onc

[12] orf two questions in examination-in-chief.

g MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I think what we will do in that case is
[14] you had better tefl Mr Hobbs what it is you are going to

115 get out of him in-chief, s0 he knows whether he needs to

1§ crossexamine and prepare accordingly. You had better

1171 tell him what you are going to ask him.

18] (4.00 pm)

g MR HOBBS: My Lord, thereare two points whichmy learned
120 friend has been good enough to outline to me.The first

[21] onc is apparently going involve some evidence -

1221 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Which witness are we talking about?
23 MR HOBBS: Mr Chambcrs. I had sent my learned friends a
2] letter on Friday saying that his staternent, as they put

tz5} it in, could be read and taken for what it was worth in

Page 147

t1] inherited from a predecessor?
121 A: Yes,Ido,sir.
1B Q: On along-term loyalty scheme?
¥ At Ido.
B Qi Were you also told that, within that scheme, your own
(&) gardening concept could be used?
7 At Yes, I was,
® Qi Why was it again you raised the subject of the option in
g summer 1993 with him?
o) A:i The reason I raised it with hito was I was asking if he
111} wanted to negotiate an option with me for my particular
{12] scheme. I reminded him of the fact that, when I spoke
[13] to him after his internal meeting in May, he had
(4] mentioned then that they had an option on this - a
[15] muiti-retailer loyalty scheme,

6t Q: And those recollections and those conversations you
(171 recall having?

ng A Yes,

(191  Q: And they are true?

o) A: They are true.

211 Q: Thank you, Mr Armstrong-Holmes.

221 MR HOBBS: Before the witnessis released, can I have acopy

{231 of the letter that was referred to?
4] MR COX: [amafraid, my Lord, when my learned friend called
125] for it, I was unattended by a solicitor. We will

— Page 148

111 the scheme of the evidence-in-chief as a whole at the
121 end of the day. So I was content for it to be read as
8] it stands. This is the first intinsation that I have had
] that there was a desire to supplement the evidence with,
) apparenily, production -
] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Do not give me the details.
m MRHOBBS: I will not.
© MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Is the supplementing something which
you
i8] may wish to cross-eXamine on?
100 MR HOBBS: Undoubtedly.
111 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: In thich case I will direct that a
112) supplementary witness statement be prepared and served
(13 on you by 6 o’clock this afternoon, together with any
114] documents it refers to and that the witness will have to
{15 be available tomorrow morning. ! am sorry, Mr Hobbs.
1&g That does not give you very much time to prepare. But
1171 1 do not want the witness held back any further than
p1g] that. So T want a supplementary witness statement on
{19] this issue. All right. No probicm with you for that,
120 Mr Cox?
24 MR COX: May I again — I am afraid I am unattcnded. I have
{22] to say to your Lordship that I perfectly understand that
231 and indeed -
124 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: If there is any problem —
251 MR COX: We will do it. Would your Lordship give me just
Page 148
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[1] one moment? i MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Absolutely. Can we leave it like that

= MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Yes.
B MR COX: MrChambershasbeen here beforeis the problemand
#] waited on one or two other occasions. That is nobody’s
(5] fault, save possibly mine for bad timing.
51 MR JUSTICE LADDIE;: What arc you saying, that he wantstobe
[7] examined this evening?
1 MR COX: My Lord, he would have liked to be, but I see no
8] alternative,
g MR JUSTICE LADDIE: When did you know of the additional
{41} material?
'z MR COX: This weekend. This relates to the unexpected -
31 MR JUSTICE LABDIE: Do not tell me what it relates to. I do
(4] not want to know anything other than what is in the
[15] wWitness —
(] MR COX: Can I put it this way, so that I can get my
[17] position straight ~
rie) MR JUSTICE LADDIE: You think the case has developedalong

" (19) unpleasant paths and you -

/“\‘)

2] MR COX: Wholly unexpected from the claimant’s point of
1] view; an allegation of forgery. I know I am continually
2] repeating the same thing but -

1z then for this afternoon? We then have Mr Chambers to

i3] deal with, Mr Donovan Senior to deal with. Is that

¥ right?

B MR COX: My Lord, I do not think at this stage, unless it is

|6} appropriate ~ I am not certain what course he will

M take.

B MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Fine.You arc at least just a5 entitled
19 to keep your powder as dry as Mr Hobbs’ continues to be.

po; MR COX: I have to be honest, my Lord, 1 do not know what
141] his course will be.

1121 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: We have Mr Chambers, Mr McMahon?
113) MR COX: My Lord, I may call no further cvidence. I want to
114] make that plain today.

57 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I sce.

fg) MR COX: I am going to take instructions this evening.

1171 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; So it may just be Mr Chambers keft?
1187 MR COX: And that is it,

ne; MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Mr Hobbs, will you be ready with your

[20] witnesscs, on the assumption you are going to bless us
21 with any?
2z MRHOBBS: My Lord,I think my learned friend might have

23] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I got the point the first three times, {za] taken a cue there and been graceful and said that he got
2] MR COX; It is not adumbrated anywhere. Over the weekend [24] my running order last Thursday ~
1251 1 have had many hours - I say with weariness ~ of 25 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: For the second time, Mr Hobbs, put your
Page 149 Page 151
{11 conference and discussion over this issue. To what 111 claws back in.
i2) extent I am taking it overseriousty, I am not sure, but ©1 MRHOBBS; lam sorry.] havea running orderwhichmadean

(2] what cvidence the ctaimant ought to, at this very late
K] stage, think of producing to meet these allegations.
& MR JUSTICE LADDIE; Becausc they are sericus, Mr Cox, and
i6] they arc as serious when they are made by the defendants
[7] against your clients as they are when they are made by
8] your clients against the defendants. Both sides; as
i8] I said at the very outset of this case, are making the
[10] most serious allegations of dishonesty against the
[11] others.That has been clear from the outset. Whether
{12} the actual detail of it was clear, I know not. But
[13] certainly, to me, it was clear that cach side was
{14] accusing the other of lying and insofar as -
(s MR COX: But not forgery.
(16 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Because the allegations are serious,
[17} Mr Cox, and because they go to the honesty of your
[18] witnesses and the honesty of Mr Lazenby, 1 think,
{16] as I say, a supplemental witness statement should be
[20] done.
2] MR COX: It will be done.
22 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I am sorry it will be inconvenient for
{23] Mr Chambers, but it has to be dealt with.
1241 MR COX: 1 agree entirely, my Lord. 1 hope your Lordship
{25]. understands why it is [ate.
e Page 150

[3] assumption, as it said, that I would have witnesses in
#] the box today. That assumption has been falsified, so
51 I have to go back and find out. But the answer is;
18] there will be witnesses from my side tomorrow, I will
7 let your Lordship know through the usual channels what
@ the proposed running order is.
@ MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Thank you verymuch, Mr Hobbs. Finally,
110 for the third time of asking, Mr Cox, can I have your
111] skeleton argument on disk?
(121 MR COX: No. My Lord, the disk is stuck in the camputer.
na I have been trying to get it out ail day. I promise
[14] you, it is the truth.
15 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: If the worst comes to the worse, giveme
{16] a clean copy and | will scan it in.

1 MR COX_;_ My Lord, we have been wrestling with this thing all
i1e] day.
1151 MR JUSTICE LADDIE; I will scan it in. It will be a lot

{20 faster.

211 MR COX: We have a solution. Does your Lordship has

1221 E-mail?

1za] MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I do.

2] MR COX: Could I E4mail it to your Lordship.

1255 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: I cannot guarantee it will -
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M . MR COX: If I was to give it to your clerk, that may solve

{5 the problem.

B MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Will that aiso include the chronology
#¥] with an extra column?

B MR COX: Yes, it is all done.

© MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Anything clse?

1 MR HOBBS: Since I have to bring witnesses, and since it is
8] possible that Mr Chambers may be the last one, when

18] might I know whether he is the last one, please?
o) MB COX: I will tell my learned friend this evening.
[ MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Before you close your case, will you
{12] make sure that Mr Hobbs has 2 copy of the correspondence
{13] between Mr Donovan Junior and the Jast witness. So
[14] that, in case Mr Armstrong-Holmes has to be recalled,

[15] that can be done before?

iteg MR COX: I will certainly do that. Yes.

177 MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Anything clse, Mr Hobbs?

g MR HOBBS: Nothing occurs, my Lord.

"psl MR JUSTICE LADDIE: Thank you very much.

[ (4.10 pm)
Bt (The court adjourned untl 10.30 am
[22] onTuesday, 22nd june 199%)

23
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